
 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
October 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home Police Department, 1950 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:   

Councilor Briana   Councilor Gourley  
   Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Goble 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes: October 09, 2018 (pg. 3-5)
 

D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 
 

E. Old Business: 
 
F. New Business: 

a) Request for Council Action – GovernmentJobs.com Agreement (pg. 6-18)
b) Request for Council Action – Drug Free Transportation Consortium Agreement (pg. 19-27)
c) Request for Council Action – OLCC Permit – Speedee Mart (pg. 28-43)
d) Request for Council Action – City Hall Bid Documents (pg. 44-56) 
e) Request for Council Action – City Hall Zone Change (pg. 57-69)
f) Request for Council Action – Capitol Christmas Tree Booking Agreement (pg. 70-76)
g) Request for Council Action – Water System Leak Detection Survey (pg. 77-84)
h) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 15 for 2018 – Peer Court IGA (pg. 85-95) 
i) Information Only – City of Sweet Home Personnel Policy Update (pg. 96-164)

 
G. Ordinance Bills 

i. Introduction and Request for Ordinance  
ii. First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
iii. Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iv. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
H. Reports of Committees: 

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.1



c) Department Director’s Reports: 
i. Finance Director 

(1) FD Monthly Report (pg. 165-166)
(2) Quarterly Projections (pg. 167-170)
(3) Checks by Date (pg. 171 - 174)
(4) Revenue vs. Expenses (pg. 175-179)

ii. Library Services Director 
(1) Library Director’s Report (pg. 180)
(2) Circulation Stats by Item (pg. 181)
(3) Patron Stats – July – Sept, 2018 (pg. 182)
(4) Library Advisory Board Minutes 09-13-18 (pg. 183-184)

iii. Community and Economic Development Director  
iv. Police Chief 

(1) Department Statists  (pg. 185)
v. Public Works Director 
vi. City Attorney’s Report  

 
I. Reports of City Officials:  
Administrative & Finance/Property Goble 
Public Safety/Traffic Safety  Briana 
Public Works Mahler 
Park and Tree Committee  Trask 
Youth Advisory Council Gourley 
Chamber of Commerce Coleman 
Fire District Trask 
Council of Governments  Gerson 
Area Commission on Transportation Briana 
Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 
Ad Hoc Committee on Health  Gourley 
Capitol Christmas Tree Committee (Minutes 10-02-18) (pg. 186) Coleman 
 
J. Council Business for Good of the Order: 
 
K. Adjournment  

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.2



SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
October 09, 2018 

 
Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police Department. The Pledge 
of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Library Services Director Rose Peda, Finance Director Brandon 
Neish, City Attorney Robert Snyder, Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte, Public 
Works Director Greg Springman, Police Chief Jeff Lynn and Recording Secretary Julie Fisher. 
 
Visitors Registered to Speak:  Dana and Dewi Flores                         
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
            Alex Paul, Albany Democrat Herald 
     
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  P  Councilor Gourley             P 
  Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler   P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor  Trask  P  
  Councilor Goble  P 
 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 

of Petition: 

 

Special Department Reports: 
Police Dept Sergeant Cummings 
Streets Greg Springman 
Water Dist. Lead Wes Glen 
Fleet Mechanic Tim Riley 
Park Crew Lead Kevin Makinson 
Library Joy Kistner 
Finance Dept Cindi Robeck 
CED Jerry Sorte 
Executive Dept Julie Fisher 
 

Old Business: 

 
New Business: 

 

Request for Council Action – 
Appointment to the Charter Review 
Committee 
 
Request for Council Action – 2017-
2018 Budget Review/Year End 

 

Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 

submitted. (Trask/Gerson) Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 

Opposed, 0 Absent  

 
Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 
Approval of Minutes: September 25, 2018 – Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
Staff from each department gave a brief report to the Council on 
projects and improvements that have taken place in the past 
year.   
 

Mayor Mahler commended every department and added this 
week he has received three calls from citizens regarding 
excellent service they have received from City staff. 
 
 
 
 
None 
 
 
 
Motion to appoint Dave Holley to the Charter Review 

Committee. (Gourley/Coleman). Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 

0 Opposed and 0 Absent. 

 
Finance Director presented the request to approve transfers 
within the General Fund from non-departmental to Finance  as 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.3



Transfers Resolution 
 
 
 
 
Chamber of Commerce – 
Discussion of a Local Business 
License – Discussion Only. 
 
Dana and Dewi Flores 
1266 41st Avenue 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 
Introduction, First and Second 

Reading of Ordinance Bills: 
 

Introduction: 

 
First Reading: 

 

Second Reading: 

 
Third and Final Reading of 

Ordinance Bills: 

  

Resolution No. 15 for 2018.  Motion to approve Resolution No. 

15 for 2018 – A Resolution Authorizing Transfer of 

Appropriations within the General Fund. (Briana/Trask) 

Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 0 Absent. 
 
Dana and Dewi Flores introduced themselves as Chamber of 
Commerce representatives and presented to the Council the 
desire for some type of business license or registration.  
Consensus of the Council was for staff to bring information back 
to the Council understanding it was a low priority and not to take 
staff away from other priorities.  It was requested staff create an 
online survey for public input on the matter. 
 
 
None 
 
None 
 
None 
 
None 
 
 
None 

 
Mayor’s Report  
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
 

 
Mayor Mahler praised staff for an excellent Harvest Festival. 
 
City Manager Towry reported the City Hall Bids will be on the next 
Council Agenda and are available for viewing at City Hall.   
The Personnel Policies will be on the next Agenda for Council as 
well. 
City Manager Towry reported he will be forming an Advisory 
Committee on Economic Development, which is allowed by 
Charter.   
City Manager Towry noted this meeting is the first meeting for 
Council to have electronic packets and it is going well. 

 
Department Directors Reports: 

 
Finance Director 

 
 

Library Director 
 
 

Community and Economic 
Development Director 

 
 

Police Chief 
 
 

Public Works 

 
 
 
Finance Director Neish presented a power point quarterly update 
for Revenues vs. Expenses. 
 
Library Services Director Peda invited the Council to two upcoming 
programs: Andrea Watkins and a live Pinocchio performance. 
 
CEDD Jerry Sorte referred to his September Department Report 
included in the packet.  An update on CEIP applications was 
given. 
 
Chief Lynn gave a brief report on the LINE Task Force, which 
consists of investigators from Sweet Home, Lebanon and Albany. 
 
Public Works Director Springman referred to his report in the 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.4



 
 
 
     City Attorney  
 
Adjournment: 
 

packet with project updates and Key Performance Indicators.  
Playground safety was discussed. 
 
None 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:25 PM. 
 

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the October 09, 2018 regular City 
Council Meeting. 
 
 
               
                        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
              
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.5



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
City Manager Ray Towry 
REVIEWED BY:   
 

TITLE:   
Approval of Job Posting 
Subscription on Government 
Jobs.com (GJC) 
ATTACHMENTS:   
GJC Agreement 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

    RESOLUTION 

    MOTION 

    OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:  
Council approval of an agreement to allow contracting with NEOGOV for Job Posting 
Subscription Services on GovernmentJobs.com 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
The City of Sweet Home desires to reach qualified candidates during open recruitments.  Staff 
believes the current pen and paper process discourages many candidates from submitting their 
applications.  In the past year, several recruitments have been reopened due to the lack of 
qualified applicants.  This has caused lengthy recruitments and additional advertising costs. 
 
Many government agencies recruit thru governmentjobs.com (GJC).  GJC allows applicants to 
easily apply using their mobile devices.  In addition, GJC will not allow candidates who do not 
meet the minimum qualifications to submit applications.  The program also allows candidates to 
track their application status without contacting the City and will generate a response to 
applicants during each step of recruitment.  GJC is a nationwide program reaching candidates 
across the U.S. as well as local candidates.  The City will continue to use local means such as 
the City website to announce job recruitments. 
 
Legal staff has read through and approved the Agreement. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
How can the City of Sweet Home attract qualified candidates for open recruitments? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City Staff: Will reduce advertising cost amount of staff time in the recruitment process. 
● Qualified Applicants: Will be able to find City of Sweet Home’s open recruitment in their 

employment search and will be able to apply using their mobile device. 
● City Council:  Aspires to have an effective and efficient local government.   

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
Annual fees for NEOGOV GJC License $900.00 per year.  The City of Sweet Home currently 
recruits thru the City website, local newspapers, Oregon Employment Office and various 
government websites such as Oregon Planners Association, Local Government Personnel 
Institute (LGPI) and League of Oregon Cities (LOC).  Each recruitment incurs an advertising 
cost of close to $1500.00.  In 2018 there were 8 external recruitments. Staff estimates a 
potential cost savings by using GJC.  
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
Means of attracting and retaining qualified candidates to fill open recruitments in a timely 
manner. 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.6



 
OPTIONS:  

1. Approve the Agreement as presented. The City will begin advertising open recruitments 
using governmentjobs.com. 

2. Reject the Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends Council choose option #2, Motion to approve the Agreement with 
NEOGOV for Job Posting Subscription Services on governmentjobs.com. 
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.7



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.8



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.9



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.10



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.11



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.12



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.13



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.14



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.15



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.16



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.17



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.18



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
City Manager Ray Towry 
REVIEWED BY:   
 

TITLE:   
Drug Free Transportation 
Consortium Agreement 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Drug Free Transportation 
Consortium Agreement 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

    RESOLUTION 

    MOTION 

    OTHER 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:  
Council approval of an Agreement to allow contracting with Samaritan Occupational Medicine’s 
Drug Free Transportation Consortium for the provision of drug and alcohol testing services. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
The City of Sweet Home has utilized Samaritan Occupational Medicine’s Drug Free 
Transportation Consortium (DFTC) for all drug and alcohol testing services.  Random Drug and 
Alcohol testing is required for all drivers that hold a Commercial Driver’s License.  In addition, 
the City utilizes DFTC for pre-employment screening for safety sensitive positions, mandatory 
testing and also the administration of required Hepatitis B vaccines for employees. 
 
Legal staff has read through and approved the Agreement. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City enter into an Agreement with Samaritan Occupational Medicine’s Drug Free 
Transportation Consortium for the provision of drug and alcohol testing services? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City Staff:  The City of Sweet Home has a strong commitment to providing a safe 
workplace for its employees as outlined in the Substance Abuse Policy for the City of 
Sweet Home. 

● Citizens:  
 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
Annual fees due January of each year include a $50.00 Company Fee and a $55.00 fee per 
each driver. Additional Fees could include Pre-placement drug screen $55.00, All other drug 
screens $60.00, Breath Alcohol $33.00, and After-hours call back fee $60.00. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
Legally recognized and certified Drug Testing Program 
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Approve the Agreement as presented. The City will continue to use Samaritan 
Occupational Medicine Drug Free Transportation Consortium for the provision of drug 
and alcohol testing services.   

2. Reject the Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends Council choose option #2, Motion to approve the Agreement with 
Samaritan Health Services Drug Free Transportation Consortium for the provision of 
drug and alcohol testing services. 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.19



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.20



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.21



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.22



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.23



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.24



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.25



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.26



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.27



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Jeff Lynn, Chief of Police 
REVIEWED:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
New Liquor License – Speedee 
Mart 
ATTACHMENTS:   
OLCC liquor License Application – 
Speedee mart 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
      OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Speedee Mart is changing ownership and the new owner, Harjit 
Singh, has applied for an “Off-Premises” liquor license. The location of the business is 1501 
Main Street. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:  The Sweet Home Police Department is tasked with reviewing 
applications for liquor licenses that are within the City Limits of Sweet Home. Speedee Mart is 
changing ownership. As with any change of ownership, the new owner must apply for a Liquor 
License through the Oregon Liquor Control Commission under their name. The new owner, 
Harjit Singh, has applied for an Off-Premises liquor license. This type of license allows beer and 
wine to be sold for off premises consumption only. This type of license is appropriate for this 
type of business.  

The Police Department received this investigation during the middle of September 2018 and has 
conducted an investigation into this request. As part of the investigation the new owner was 
contacted. The business will maintain its existing methods of operation. Mr. Singh indicated that 
he does have experience managing locations that sell alcohol.  

I received information from OLCC Inpector Amanda Cooper that she has no concerns with the 
change of ownership and that their records show no violations or licensing issues.  

Based upon review of the investigation I found no reason to recommend denial to the Sweet 
Home City Council.  

STAKEHOLDERS:   
● Speedee Mart - A liquor license and the ability to sell beer and wine as part of a 

convenience store business.  
● Citizens/Community – Speedee Mart creates additional opportunities and choices for the 

community.  
 

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

• Denial of an OLCC liquor license would have a negative impact on sales for Speedee 
Mart. 

• There are no known or anticipated financial impacts for the Sweet Home Police 
Department or the City of Sweet Home.  

 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  
2. Direct further investigation prior to City’s recommendation 
3. Make a motion that the City of Sweet Home recommends an  OLCC license be granteed 

to Speedee Mart.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends option #3 - Make a motion that the City of Sweet Home recommends 
an  OLCC license be granteed to Speedee Mart.   

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.28



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.29



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.30



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.31



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.32



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.33



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.34



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.35



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.36



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.37



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.38



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.39



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.40



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.41



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.42



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.43



1 

 

 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
R. Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY:   
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Contract Bids for re-construction of the 
New City Hall. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Contract Bid Results. 
Pre-Bid Attendees. 
Project Timeline –Revised. 
Construction Schedule. 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
 
______RESOLUTION 
 
______MOTION 
 
______OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
Staff is requesting approval to approve the Construction Contract to GBC Construction LLC for the 
remodel construction of the New City Hall in the amount of $910.000.00 with a 10% contingency 
factor.  Construction Bids have been acquired pursuant to ORS and local bidding policy. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
This is the next step in the process continuing the construction of the City Hall Remodel at the new 
location at 3225 Main St.  The City performed a public Bid Opening on Wednesday, September 
26th, for the remodel of the old USFS building into a New City Hall (NCH).  During the mandatory 
Pre-Bid meeting on September 12th at the NCH, there were eight participants, with three General 
Contractors submitting bids.  Bids were opened at 2:00 pm with the following results:   

(General Contractors Bid Form) 

(Name)  (Bid Quote) (Bid Bond) (1st Tier) 

GBC Construction $ 910,000.00 x x 

Wildish Building Company $ 1,228,000.00 x x 

Collaborative Const. Solutions $ 1,020,000.00 x x 

 
GBC Construction LLC of Corvallis Oregon, is the apparent low bidder.   
 
On Monday October 15th, 2018, the Sweet Home Planning Commission approved the next step in 
the process.  The Conditional Use Permit – and application – is for the governmental use of the 
property (SHMC 17.36.030(B)) for the C-2 Commercial Highway Zone.  Building Plans have been 
reviewed by the Building Program Inspection staff and approved.  Both the Building and Planning 
application processing have been concurrent with the Bid activities.  The 12-day Planning Appeal 
Period will expire on November 2nd, after which the Contractor may proceed with construction 
when authorized.    
A six-week time extension was granted for the construction completion date, to accommodate 
design-review-permitting work necessary for the MEP (Mechanical, Electrical & Plumbing) 
subcontractors.  The work time of approximately 4 months is expected to remain the same. 
 
The attached files are the records of the Pre-Bid meeting and Bid opening.  Updated timelines of 
the anticipated progress to building occupancy are also attached.   
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:  
Maintaining continued progress on construction of the New City Hall remodel.   

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.44



2 

 

 
STAKEHOLDERS:     

 Citizens: Services to the public will be improved as all municipal functions are readily 
available on a single ground level floor.  Multiple meeting spaces are all located within one 
building.  And the remodel of an existing structure is less than the full cost of a new 
structure.   

 City of Sweet Home City Council – A larger more functional Council Chambers will provide 
improved services both to all members, as well as the public attending meetings.   

 Staff: The New City Hall building will provide more meeting space, a better interior layout, 
and more storage than the current building. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  

1. The plan Council approved by consensus has been brought to the construction stage of the 
work.  Upon Council approval, the contractor will be able to start within the next few days 
on construction mobilization.   Necessary Planning approvals and building permits have 
been acquired.  

2. Funds have been allocated within the City Budgeting Process. 
3. The resulting low Bid came in less than estimates.   
4. Council and Staff will have the opportunity to review the construction costs as work 

progresses; and decide to continue, or to alter the scope of work should the construction 
costs be higher than anticipated.   

5. Project contingencies of 10% to handle unforeseen circumstances (standard).   
6. In discussions with the S|EA architects (email Oct 5th), because of the interior nature of the 

work, the following elements of the project were outside the scope of the construction 
contract.  However, some may not be added costs. 

 Security and Fire Alarm systems are currently part of City’s security system contract 
which will continue. 

 Area fire extinguishers will be the same units moved without changes to the VFC 
contract.  

 The Bidder-Design process involving the mechanical system can have changes or 
alterations based on the city’s review of the proposed scope & type of equipment. 

 Fixtures and furniture purchase options are being considered using existing 
furniture, and possible SHHS Wood Shop student projects for tables, etc. 

 Telephone, Data, and Networking will be with existing vendor contracts. With an 
initial expense of routing cables to work and conference areas, setup of both phone 
and network servers in the new building will require installation costs, and may 
require some equipment upgrades also. 

 Moving costs will be handled with our own city staff.  It will be a busy weekend. 
 Construction administration will likely be handled by city staff also. 
 There will some modification to the exterior sidewalk and ADA ramp for the rear – 

south wall – exit door. 
 The parking lot storm drain catch basin system will need to have at least one 

replacement catch basin, possibly two.  
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
Approval of Construction Contract for the General Contractor to begin the construction and 
proceed over the winter months with an estimated end of March completion date.   
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Do Nothing.  Not selecting a building contractor would cause the project to come to a stop. 
2. Rebid the Contract Documents.  The Council may cancel the bid approval process and 

require the documents to be rebid again with the anticipated - but not guaranteed - goal of 
additional or lower bids.  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.45



3 

 

3. Rebid the Contract Documents with changes.   The Council may cancel the bid approval 
process and have the architects provide additional data/design to utility subcontractors, and 
or modify the design and interior finish materials, and rebid again.  Additional time for 
processing will delay work, with typically incremental increases in materials and labor.  This 
requires additional architects time and money to coordinate full design scope for the MEPs, 
so they know what they are bidding on specifically.  The cost will go up with the Architect 
for that, but down (maybe) for the overall project since the MEPs do not have to evaluate 
and design their own.  The additional bid time would likely increase costs accordingly.  
Building and Structural design is done. 

4. Authorize the Contract signing with GBC Construction LLC for the New City Hall remodel 
for the cost of $910,000 with 10% contingency.   Signing the contract will enable the 
General Contractor to begin the work with the final date of March 29, 2019. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends Council approve a motion for option #4: Authorize the Contract signing with 
GBC Construction LLC for the New City Hall remodel for the cost of $910,000 with 10% 
contingency.    
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.46



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.47



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.48



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.49



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.50



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.51



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.52



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.53



City of Sweet Home

1140 12th Avenue

Phone 541.367.6977

Sweet Home New City Hall Reconstruction

GC and SubContractors List.

10/1/2018

General Contractor GBC Construction Wildish Building Company Collaborative Const. Solutions LLC

$910,000.00 $1,228,000.00 $1,020,000.00

1st Tier Subcontractors

Mechanical - HVAC Northwest Mechanical Northwest Mechanical Northwest Mechanical

$111,700 $111,700 $111,700

Electrical Sunset Electric Benton Electic Sunset Electric

$99,480 $106,500 $113,705

Drywall/Ceilings LP Company Hathaway Inc IES

$139,039 $176,507 $158,991

Flooring Rubensteins -- Rubensteins Contract Carpet

$55,520 $55,520

Subcontractor Totals $405,739 $394,707 $439,916

Percent of GC Bid 45% 32% 43%

Remainder for Construction $504,261 $833,293 $580,084

G:\Property Files\Map_Pages\131E33B\101\NCH Reconstruction\SubCon Table of Prices.xlsx Page 1 of 1City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.54



g:\property files\map_pages\131e33b\101\nch reconstruction\(x)(x)(3) nch project timeline memo - revised.docx 09/28/18 Page 1 of 1 

 

PROJECT FILE MEMORANDUM 
 
Sweet Home Community & Economic Development Dept.      TEL: 541-367-6977 
1140 12th Avenue, Sweet Home  OR  97386       FAX: 541-367-6440 

TO:   RAY TOWRY,  

FROM:   JOE GRAYBILL 

SUBJECT:   TIME LINE FOR NEW CITY HALL (NCH) 

PERMIT:   NA 

DATE:    AUGUST 22, 2018 

REVISED SEPTEMBER 28, 2018. 

PROPERTY FILE: 13S 01E 33B 00101 

 

1. Project Schedule 

The work schedule below includes bidding, a pre-bid meeting, Council approval to proceed with 
construction, and project completion dates. 

The work schedule is extended at the bidders and architects request to accommodate additional 
front-end Design-Build time for the subcontractor MEPs (Mechanical, Electrical, & Plumbing).  An 
additional 6 week process time will place the Substantial Completion Date to be March 29, 2019. 

 

Current Date through Completion    

City Council NCH Approval to Proceed with Bidding. Aug 28th    

Construction advertisement on Sep 5th  to  

Pre-Bid Walk Thru at NCH Sep 12th    

Architects Questions closed on Sep 19th    

Construction bids due Sep 26th    

Construction bid review by City Sep 26th  to Oct 3rd  

Construction RCA to City Council Oct 3rd    

Construction Bid evaluation by City Council Oct 9th    

Construction Bid award Oct 10th    

Construction startup meetings Oct 10th  to Oct 19th  

Construction start Oct 22nd    

Construction is to be substantially completed, Certificate of Occupancy. (Rev.) Feb 14th    

Construction completed.  (Rev.) Feb 28th    

New Schedule Completion Date March 29th    

Construction Liquidated Damages.  (Rev.) Apr 1st   Apr 12th  

Construction Liquidated Damages Rate Increase.  (Rev.) Apr 15th  to Apr 26th  

Construction Liquidated Damages Rate Increase.  (Rev.) Apr 29th  to Cert of O.  

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.55



ID Task
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 New City Hall 184 days? Tue 8/28/18 Fri 5/10/19

2 RFB Bid Approval 47 days Tue 8/28/18 Wed 10/31/18

3 Council Project 
Approval

0 days Tue 8/28/18 Tue 8/28/18

4 Addv TNE & DJC 16 days Wed 9/5/18 Wed 9/26/18

5 Pre-Bid meeting 0 days Wed 9/12/18 Wed 9/12/18

6 Bid  Due 0 days Wed 9/26/18 Wed 9/26/18

7 Bid Review 6 days Wed 9/26/18 Wed 10/3/18

8 PlanComm Action 
CU-ZC

0 days Mon 10/15/18 Mon 10/15/18

9 PlanComm Wait 
Period

12 days Tue 10/16/18 Wed 10/31/18

10 RCA 0 days Thu 10/18/18 Thu 10/18/18

11 Council  Award 0 days Tue 10/23/18 Tue 10/23/18

12 Notice of Award 0 days Wed 10/24/18 Wed 10/24/18

13 Construction 122 days? Wed 10/24/18 Thu 4/11/19

14 Contract 
Administration

8 days Wed 10/24/18 Fri 11/2/18

15 Notice to Proceed 0 days Fri 11/2/18 Fri 11/2/18

16 Construction 75 days Mon 11/5/18 Fri 2/15/19

17 Construction Time 
Extension

31 days? Fri 2/15/19 Fri 3/29/19

18 Construction Final 10 days Fri 3/29/19 Thu 4/11/19

19 Liguidated 
Damages

21 days Fri 4/12/19 Fri 5/10/19

20 Liquidated 
Damages 1

11 days Fri 4/12/19 Fri 4/26/19

21 Liquidated 
Damages 2

10 days Sun 4/28/19 Fri 5/10/19

22 Structural Permits 27 days Mon 9/17/18 Tue 10/23/18

23 Structural Permit 
Start

0 days Mon 9/17/18 Mon 9/17/18

24 City Review 1 26 days Tue 9/18/18 Tue 10/23/18

25 Permits Ready 0 days Tue 10/23/18 Tue 10/23/18

26 Permits Issued 0 days Tue 10/23/18 Tue 10/23/18

27 MEP Deferred 
Submittals

78 days? Wed 9/12/18 Fri 12/28/18

28 MEP Pre-Lim 
Design

11 days Wed 9/12/18 Wed 9/26/18

29 MEP Design 30 days? Wed 10/24/18 Tue 12/4/18

30 MEP Deferred 
Permit Review

0 days Tue 12/4/18 Tue 12/4/18

31 City Review 2 18 days Wed 12/5/18 Fri 12/28/18

32 MEP Permits 
Ready

0 days Fri 12/28/18 Fri 12/28/18

33 MEP Permits 
Issued

0 days Fri 12/28/18 Fri 12/28/18

New City Hall

RFB Bid Approval

Council Project Approval

Pre-Bid meeting

Bid  Due

10/15

RCA

Council  Award

Notice of Award

Construction

Notice to Proceed

Liguidated Damages

Structural Permits

Structural Permit Start

Permits Ready

Permits Issued

MEP Deferred Submittals

MEP Deferred Permit Review

MEP Permits Ready

MEP Permits Issued

12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 5 12 19 26
Sep '18 Oct '18 Nov '18 Dec '18 Jan '19 Feb '19 Mar '19 Apr '19 May '19 Jun '19

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: City Hall Const Sched
Date: Fri 9/28/18

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.56



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
October 23, 2018 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jerry Sorte, CED 
Director 
 
REVIEWED BY:   
 

TITLE:   
Public Hearing on Zone Change 
Application ZC 18-03 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Staff Report  
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
      RESOLUTION 
  X  MOTION 
       OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
 
The purpose of this RCA is to provide background information for the City Council; so that the 
Council can make an informed decision on a requested zone change for the new City Hall 
property. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
 
This is an application by the City of Sweet Home to change the zoning of an approximately 5.3 
acre property; including adjacent Main Street (Highway 20) right-of-way, from the Residential 
Low-Density (R-1) Zone to the Commercial Highway (C-2) Zone. The property has a 
Comprehensive Plan Map designation of Highway Commercial, and the current R-1 zoning is 
not consistent with the existing Comprehensive Plan Map designation for the property. The 
proposed zone change would bring the zoning designation into conformity with the property’s 
existing Comprehensive Plan Map designation.  
 
The property that is subject to this application is located at 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, OR 
97386; Identified on the Linn County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E33B Tax Lot 101; Including 
adjacent right-of-way within Main Street (Highway 20). 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 15, 2018, and made a 
recommendation to the City Council to approve this application. The City Council will hold a 
public hearing and make a decision on this application. The Staff Report for this project is 
included as Exhibit 1 to this RCA.  
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   
 
Does the proposed zone change comply with the applicable provisions of the Sweet Home 
Municipal Code; including the provisions of the Sweet Home Comprehensive Plan?  
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
  

• City of Sweet Home Property Owners, Businesses, and Residents – The proposed zone 
change would facilitate the development of the new City Hall property. The property 
would become a location where the City would provide services to all City property 
owners, businesses, and residents.  

 
 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.57



 
If approved, the subject property would be developed as the new City Hall. The property had 
been previously used as a governmental office facility by the U.S. Forest Service, and the City 
currently owns this property.  
 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
 
A stable solution should include consideration by the City Council on whether the proposed 
zone change helps the City to meet its long term planning vision and whether the proposal 
complies with all of the applicable review and decision criteria.   
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Move to approve application ZC 18-03. 
2. Move to deny application ZC 18-03 (specify reasons);   
3. Move to continue the public hearing in order to consider the information in the record or 

to gather additional information (specify date, time, and location); 
4. Take no action; or 
5. Other 

 
If the City Council approves this application, staff will prepare an ordinance for review and 
adoption by the City Council. The ordinance would officially amend the Zoning Map and adopt 
findings of fact in support of the application. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing on these applications. Based on 
the information submitted in the record to date, staff recommends that City Council follow Option 
1 and move to approve application ZC 18-03.  
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit 1 - Staff Report Dated October 16, 2018; Which Includes the Following Attachments: 

A -  Subject Property Map 
B -  Zoning Map 
C -  Comprehensive Plan Map 
D -  Aerial Photograph  
E -  Planning Application Form  

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.58



  

 
Staff Report for Application ZC 18-03 to City Council  1 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Report Presented to the City Council 

REQUEST:  Zone Change Application: ZC 18-03: The City of Sweet Home is proposing to 
change the zoning of an approximately 5.3 acre property; including adjacent Main Street 
(Highway 20) right-of-way, from the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone to the Commercial 
Highway (C-2) Zone. The property has a Comprehensive Plan Map designation of Highway 
Commercial, and the current R-1 zoning is not consistent with the existing Comprehensive Plan 
Map designation for the property. The proposed zone change would bring the zoning 
designation into conformity with the property’s existing Comprehensive Plan Map designation. 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 15, 2018, and made a 
recommendation to the City Council to approve this application. The City Council will hold a 
public hearing and make a decision on this application. 

APPLICANT/  
PROPERTY OWNER: City of Sweet Home 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the 
Linn County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E33B Tax Lot 101; 
Including adjacent right-of-way within Main Street (Highway 20). 

REVIEW AND  
DECISION CRITERIA: Sweet Home Municipal Code Section(s) 17.12.025; OAR 660-

012-0060 

FILE NUMBER: ZC 18-03 

 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING  

 DATE &TIME: October 23, 2018 at 6:30 PM 
 LOCATION: Sweet Home Police Department, 1950 Main Street, Sweet 

Home, Oregon 97386 

REPORT DATE: October 16, 2018 

 

I. PROJECT AND PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

LOCATION: The subject property contains approximately 5.3 acres, and is part of a tract of land 
that was formerly used as a U.S. Forest Service facility. The property subject to this application 
includes the adjacent portion of right-of-way that extends to the center of Main Street (Highway 
20). The property is currently zoned R-1, and the City would like to change the zoning to C-2 in 
order to implement the property’s existing Comprehensive Plan designation of Commercial.  

The City of Sweet Home has concurrently applied for Conditional Use Permit CU 18-12 to use 
the subject property, and the neighboring City-owned properties identified as Tax Lots 200, 300, 
and 400 (13S01E33B) as the new location of the Sweet Home City Hall. Tax Lots 200, 300, and 
400 are already zoned C-2. Approval of this zone change application would bring the entire tract 
into the C-2 zone.  

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12

th
 Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

Exhibit 1

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.59



  

 
Staff Report for Application ZC 18-03 to City Council  2 

 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this application on October 15, 2018. After 
providing an opportunity for public testimony and deliberating on this matter, the Planning 
Commission passed a motion 4-0 to recommend that the City Council approve this application.  

The Planning Commission also held a public hearing and approved application CU 18-12; which 
is dependent on approval of this zone change. 

 

ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: 

Property Zoning Designation Comprehensive Plan Designation 

Subject Property Residential Low Density (R-1) Highway Commercial 

Property North Residential High Density (R-2) 
and Commercial Highway (C-2) 

Highway Commercial 

Property East Residential High Density (R-2) 
and Commercial Highway (C-2) 

High Density Residential and Highway 
Commercial 

Property South Commercial Highway (C-2) High Density Residential 

Property West Commercial Highway (C-2) High Density Residential 

 

Floodplain Based on a review of the FEMA FIRM Maps; Panel 41043C0914G dated 
September 29, 2010, the subject property is not located in the 100-year 
floodplain.  

Wetlands: The subject property does not contain significant wetlands that are included 
on the Sweet Home Local Wetlands Inventory or the National Wetlands 
Inventory (NWI) Map. 

Access: The subject property has frontage and existing access along Main Street 
(Highway 20). Main Street is identified as a Major Arterial in the Sweet Home 
Transportation System Plan; Figure 2.2.  

Services: The property is connected to City water and sewer. 

 

TIMELINES AND HEARING NOTICE:  

Notice to DLCD (35-Day Notice): September 10, 2018 

Mailed/Emailed Notice: September 24, 2018 

Notice Published in New Era newspaper: October 3, 2018 

Planning Commission Public Hearing: October 15, 2018 

City Council Public Hearing: October 23, 2018 

Notice was provided as required by SHMC 17.12.120. 

 

II. COMMENTS 

ODOT: ODOT has no comments on the City’s proposal regarding this 
proposed zone change and conditional use permit to use the former  
Forest Service Building as the new City Hall. 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.60



  

 
Staff Report for Application ZC 18-03 to City Council  3 

 

Joe Graybill, Staff Engineer 
Community and Economic 
Development Department: Project & Location: 
 Zone Change & Conditional Use request for Assessor Map 

13S01E33B Lot 101, 3225 Main St.  The owner is The City of Sweet 
Home.    

 Streets & Stormwater: 

 The right of way of Main St (Hwy 20, Santiam Hwy) is 100 feet wide, 
with nearly 80 feet of pavement.  Sidewalks and driveway aprons 
are in place along the roadway.   

 The reconstruction of City Hall will be an interior project.   Except for 
work on the south exterior wall for siding repair and a rear access 
doorway and porch cover.   The parking lot and ADA accessibility 
path striping, and ramps (front and back), will need reconstruction.   

 Stormwater is conveyed in a pipe and catch basin system along the 
Main St frontage of the property.   Parking lot catchbasins connect 
to pipes to the south rear portion of the property and discharge to 
the piped creek running across the SW property corner.  Upgrading 
the catchbasins to City Standard pollution control Dual-Box units (or 
at least the last one prior to discharge) will need reconstruction.   

 Water & Sanitary: 

 The property is already connected to City Water and Sewer systems 
which are in the Main St right-of-way.  Both of which are large 
enough to serve the property, as well as any future uses.   

 Comments & Recommendations: 

 The neighboring property eastward encroaches onto the city lands 
by about 14 feet, for a length south from Main St about 105 feet.  
The property line runs in the middle of their driveway and apron 
access to Main St.  The city has been talking with the property 
owner to evaluate different alternatives. 

Community: No comments from the community have been received as of the 
writing of this staff report. 

 

III.   REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA  

The review and decision criteria for a zone change are listed below in bold. Staff findings and 
analysis are provided under each review and decision criterion.  

A. An amendment to the official zoning or comprehensive plan map may be authorized 
provided that the proposal satisfied all relevant requirements of this title and also 
provided that the applicant demonstrates the following: [SHMC 17.12.010] 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan; [SHMC 17.12.025(A)] 

i. The Zoning Code implements the Comprehensive Plan by providing 
specific development guidelines for each Land Use Designation. The 
general nature of each Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation will 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.61



  

 
Staff Report for Application ZC 18-03 to City Council  4 

 

guide the uses and standards for the corresponding zone in the 
Zoning Code. [Sweet Home Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 2 Text] 

ii. The Comprehensive Plan Map graphically portrays Sweet Home's land 
use pattern as recommended by Comprehensive Plan policy. Each 
designation has a different symbol or color. The land use map portrays 
the long-range vision of land use patterns in Sweet Home. [Sweet 
Home Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 2, Comprehensive Plan Map Policies, 
Policy 1] 

iii. Zoning Codes. The Zoning Codes regulate the use of land on a 
comprehensive basis. More specifically, the Zoning Codes divide the 
community into residential, commercial, industrial, and other use 
zones based on the Comprehensive Plan. Each zone has standards 
and regulations that determine the allowed uses on that land and the 
standards to which structures must conform, such as building height, 
yard setbacks, and lot size. The Codes consists of text, found in Title 
17 of the Sweet Home Municipal Codes, and an official Zoning Map. 

The Zoning Codes fulfill two major roles. First, zoning promotes the 
public health, safety, and welfare of Sweet Home. Secondly, the Zoning 
Codes implement the Comprehensive Plan. Oregon Revised Statute 
197.175 states that cities will: 

 Prepare, adopt, amend, and revise comprehensive plans in 
compliance with Statewide Planning Goals; and 

 Enact land use regulations to implement their comprehensive 
plan. 

In a broad sense, zoning encourages the orderly development of the 
community and implements the Comprehensive Plan. Zoning can only 
partially relate to the longterm aspects of the plan because as a 
regulatory tool, it must relate to the current conditions within the City 
of Sweet Home. 

The Comprehensive Plan provides a general and long-range policy for 
the City while the Zoning Codes serve as a legal ordinance with 
binding provisions on land development. The various zones have 
specific boundaries and when drafting the Zoning Ordinance, the City 
considers how each land parcel will be effected. 

Zoning Code provisions and the Zoning Map can be amended. 
Amendments shall be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. If 
proposed amendments to the Zoning Codes do not comply with the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan must also be amended 
so that the two documents correspond. [Sweet Home Comprehensive 
Plan, Chapter 2, Comprehensive Plan Map Policies, Chapter 8: Plan 
Management] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is proposing to change the zoning of the subject property from R-1 
to C-2. The Comprehensive Plan Map designation of the subject property is Highway 
Commercial. The current R-1 zoning designation is not consistent with the existing 
Comprehensive Plan Map designation of the subject property. The proposed zoning would 
implement the Highway Commercial Comprehensive Plan Map designation, and would 
therefore be consistent with the Sweet Home Comprehensive Plan. 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.62



  

 
Staff Report for Application ZC 18-03 to City Council  5 

 

The application complies with this criterion. 

2. The proposed amendment is orderly and timely, considering the pattern of 
development in the area, surrounding land uses, and any changes which may 
have occurred in the neighborhood or community to warrant the proposed 
amendment; [SHMC 17.12.025(B)] 

Staff Findings: The subject property has historically been used as a government use facility. 
Prior to acquisition by the City, the property was used as a U.S. Forest Service facility. The City 
of Sweet Home does not have a zoning designation that is specifically designed to facilitate 
public use. The proposal in this application, in combination with Conditional Use Permit CU 18-
12, would formally memorialize and authorize the historic government use of the subject 
property.   

The application complies with this criterion. 

3. Utilities and services can be efficiently provided to serve the proposed uses 
or other potential uses in the proposed zoning district; and [SHMC 
17.12.025(C)] 

Staff Findings: The City of Sweet Home is planning to remodel the former U.S. Forest Service 
building in order to use the building as a new City Hall. The property is currently served by 
water, sewer, and franchised utilities. The subject property has existing access to Main Street 
(Highway 20). Staff anticipates that due to the nature of the proposed use of the property as City 
Hall, the property will be used for governmental use for the foreseeable planning future. 

The application complies with this criterion. 

4. OAR 660-012-0060(1). If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged 
comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation (including a zoning map) would 
significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, then the 
local government must put in place measures as provided in section (2) of 
this rule, unless the amendment is allowed under section (3), (9) or (10) of this 
rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly affects a 
transportation facility if it would: 

i. Change the functional classification of an existing or planned 
transportation facility (exclusive of correction of map errors in an 
adopted plan);  

ii. Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or 
iii. Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this 

subsection based on projected conditions measured at the end of the 
planning period identified in the adopted TSP. As part of evaluating 
projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected to be generated 
within the area of the amendment may be reduced if the amendment 
includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that would 
demonstrably limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, 
transportation demand management. This reduction may diminish or 
completely eliminate the significant effect of the amendment. 

a. Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the 
functional classification of an existing or planned 
transportation facility; 

b. Degrade the performance of an existing or planned 
transportation facility such that it would not meet the 
performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive 
plan; or 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.63



  

 
Staff Report for Application ZC 18-03 to City Council  6 

 

c. Degrade the performance of an existing or planned 
transportation facility that is otherwise projected to not meet 
the performance standards identified in the TSP or 
comprehensive plan. [OAR 660-012-0060(1)] 

Staff Findings: The subject property has existing access to Highway 20 (Main Street). ODOT 
was notified of this application and did not have concerns with use of the subject property as 
City Hall. The proposed use would be consistent with past use of the property as a U.S. Forest 
Service facility. Based on these findings, staff concludes that the proposed zone change would 
not significantly affect the existing transportation infrastructure in the neighborhood. 

 

IV. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the findings listed is Section III of this report and the recommendation of approval by 
the Planning Commission, staff recommends that the City Council approve this application. 
Since the request is for a zone change, staff has not recommended any conditions of approval. 

 

V. CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

In taking action on a zone change application, the City Council will hold a public hearing at 
which it may either approve or deny the application.  The recommendation should be based on 
the applicable review and decision criteria.  

Motion: 

After opening the public hearing and receiving testimony, the City Council’s options include the 
following: 

1. Move to approve application ZC 18-03;  

2. Move to deny application ZC 18-03 (specify reasons); 

3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 

4. Other. 

Implementation: 

If the City Council approves this application, staff will prepare an ordinance for review and 
adoption by the City Council. The ordinance would officially amend the Zoning Map and adopt 
findings of fact in support of the application. 

VI. ATTACHMENTS 

A -    Subject Property Map 

B -    Zoning Map 

C -  Comprehensive Plan Map 

D -  Aerial Photograph  

E -  Planning Application Form  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.64



HWY 20

13S01E33B 00101

100

802

801

700

11001000

800

1700

1200

500

900

1300

7700

2700

1400

600

10300

105

7400

1001

6200

900

6800

3700 2800

8800

1100

7800

1000

6300

7900

1200

6100

6700
6600

6900

7700

3000

2900

3800

6000
8100

5700

5600

3500

3600

5500

5400

4000

3900

4100

8700

8600
7600

5000

4900

4800

4700

8500

4600

8400

7300

7200

7100

7000

8000

65006400

8300

100

5100

4500 4200 3400

5300

HWY 20

40
TH

LIN
DE

N
LA

UR
EL

40
TH

¯ 0 100 200 300 40050
Feet 1 inch = 200 feet

City of Sweet Home Planning Map
Zone Change ZC 18-03

3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

Legend
taxlots
roads

Subject Property
3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386
13S01E33B Tax Lot 101
Current Zoning: R1
Proposed Zoning: C2

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.65

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment A (ZC 18-03)



HWY 20

13S01E33B 00101C2

C2

C2

R2

R2

R2

R1

C2

M

100

802

801

700

11001000

800

1700

1200

500

900

1300

7700

2700

1400

600

10300

105

7400

1001

6200

900

6800

3700 2800

8800

1100

7800

1000

6300

7900

1200

6100

6700
6600

6900

7700

3000

2900

3800

6000
8100

5700

5600

3500

3600

5500

5400

4000

3900

4100

8700

8600
7600

4900

4800

4700

8500

4600

8400

7300

7200

7100

7000

8000

65006400

8300

100

5100

4500 4200 3400

5300

HWY 20

40
TH

LIN
DE

N
LA

UR
EL

40
TH

¯ 0 100 200 300 40050
Feet 1 inch = 200 feet

City of Sweet Home Planning Map
Zone Change ZC 18-03

Zoning Designations

3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

Legend
taxlots
roads

Zoning
ZONING

C2
M
R1
R2

Subject Property
3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386
13S01E33B Tax Lot 101
Current Zoning: R1
Proposed Zoning: C2

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.66

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment B (ZC 18-03)



HWY 20

13S01E33B 00101

Highway Commercial

100

802

801

700

11001000

800

1700

500

2700

900

1300

7700

10300

600

105

1400

1200

7400

1001

900

6200

6800

3700 2800

8800

7800

6300

7900

32003300

6100

6700
6600

6900

43004400

7700

3000

2900

3800

6000

3100

8400

8500

8600

8100

5700

5600

3500

3600

5500

5400
8700

4000

3900

4100

8300

3400

7600

5000

4900

4800

4700

4200

4600

7300

7200

7100

7000

8000

65006400

4500

8200

5100
5300

LONG

HWY 20

40
TH

LIN
DE

N
LA

UR
EL

40
TH

¯ 0 100 200 300 40050
Feet 1 inch = 200 feet

City of Sweet Home Planning Map
Zone Change File: ZC 18-03

Comprehensive Plan Map

3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

Legend
taxlots
roads

Comprehensive Plan
Map Designation

Highway Commercial
General Industry
Low Density Residential
High Density Residential
Mixed Use Residential

Subject Property
3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386
13S01E33B Tax Lot 101

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.67

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment C (ZC 18-03)



HWY 20

13S01E33B 00101

100

802

801

700

11001000

800

1700

1200

500

900

1300

7700

2700

1400

600

10300

105

7400

1001

6200

900

6800

3700 2800

8800

1100

7800

1000

6300

7900

1200

6100

6700
6600

6900

7700

3000

2900

3800

6000
8100

5700

5600

3500

3600

5500

5400

4000

3900

4100

8700

8600
7600

5000

4900

4800

4700

8500

4600

8400

7300

7200

7100

7000

8000

65006400

8300

100

5100

4500 4200 3400

5300

HWY 20

40
TH

LIN
DE

N
LA

UR
EL

40
TH

¯ 0 100 200 300 40050
Feet 1 inch = 200 feet

City of Sweet Home Planning Map
Zone Change ZC 18-03
2018 Aerial Photograph

3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

Legend
taxlots
roads

aerials_2018
RGB

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Subject Property
3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386
13S01E33B Tax Lot 101
Current Zoning: R1
Proposed Zoning: C2

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.68

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment D (ZC 18-03)



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.69

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment E (ZC 18-03)



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
City Manager Ray Towry 
REVIEWED BY:   
 

TITLE:   
Capitol Christmas Tree Booking 
Agreement - Cloverdayle 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Cloverdayle Agreement 

TYPE OF ACTION: 

    RESOLUTION 

    MOTION 

    OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:  
Council approval of an Agreement with Cloverdayle to perform during the Capitol Christmas 
Tree Event on November 9, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
The Capitol Christmas Tree Committee has scheduled events to be held on November 9, 2018 
in honor of the Capitol Christmas Tree’s journey to the Washington D.C.  Events include a 
parade, street fair, Proclamation by the Mayor, and performances by the HS Choir and special 
entertainment Cloverdayle thanks to efforts by SHEDG and Jamboree Director Robert Shamek. 
 
Legal staff has read through and approved the Agreement. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Entertainment not yet secured for the Capitol Christmas Tree Event 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
Citizens of Sweet Home: are expected to take part in this special community event. 
 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
The City will pay Cloverdayle $2,000.00 for the performance during the Capitol Christmas Tree 
Event and cover the cost of two double rooms.  There is no additional cost for travel and ground 
transportation.  This comes from the approved event budget in the 2018/19 Budget. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
Contract for event entertainment. 
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Approve the Agreement as presented. The City will engage Cloverdayle to perform 
during the Capitol Christmas Tree Event on November 9, 2018. 

2. Reject the Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends Council choose option #2, Motion to approve agreement with 
Cloverdayle to perform during the Capitol Christmas Tree Event on November 9, 2018. 
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.70



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.71



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.72



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.73



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.74



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.75



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.76



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
T. Rice, Engineering Tech. 
G. Springman, PW Director 
REVIEWED BY:   
R. Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Water System Leak Detection Survey 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Leak Detection Survey Proposal 
Record of staff attempt to get 3 quotes 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
 
______RESOLUTION 
 
______MOTION 
 
______OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
Staff is requesting authorization to accept the proposal by American Leak Detection of Medford, 
Oregon for leak detection services on the City’s water distribution system. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The City has a number of older waterlines that are increasingly failing due to age with either 
small constant leaks, or pipe line breaks.  We have an active Capital Improvement Plan to 
evaluate all lines, and a program to replace them over time as funding allows.  Currently, repairs 
are made as leaks are discovered.  Water main replacement projects are prioritized reactively 
based on these leak repairs, low pressure complaints from citizens, and the age/material of the 
waterlines. 
Unfortunately many leaks go unseen because they never reach the road surface and therefore 
persist unrepaired.  Industry experience is that the majority of water leaks do not reach the 
surface.  Systemwide, these numerous unseen leaks add up and are often a major factor of 
non-revenue water loss and pressure loss. The City has a high percentage of water loss and 
staff believes these unseen leaks are a large part of that.  Water loss increases the operating 
costs of producing more water and long-term system maintenance due to more wear & tear on 
pumps, etc. 
A comprehensive leak survey will identify the unseen leaks which will allow staff to prioritize 
repairs and replacement projects proactively based on all actual leak locations, instead of 
reactively based on just the leaks that reach the road surface.  This will reduce water loss and 
ultimately reduce long term expenses for water production and system maintenance. 
A leak survey consists of using acoustical listening equipment along with leak correlation, 
ground micing, pipeline locating, and using inert test gases (helium and nitrogen) approved by 
the AWWA as the approved test gas needed for testing the system and locating leaks.  The 
survey will record any leaks, irregularities or defects that may need to be addressed to maintain 
the integrity of the water system.  A comprehensive report will be submitted upon completion, 
which will identify leak locations, aid in prioritizing repairs and provide a record for future 
maintenance. 
Staff sought three quotes for this service.  After multiple directory searches and calls to industry 
contacts it became apparent that the only company in the area that performs leak detection on a 
large, municipal scale is American Leak Detection of Medford, Oregon.  Other leak detection 
companies provide services for small projects such as residential leaks and referred staff to 
American Leak Detection for a project this large.  A proposal to survey the entire distribution 
system has been submitted in the amount of $17,500 from American Leak Detection of 
Medford, Oregon. 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.77



Work would be scheduled to begin in November 2018 according to the contractor’s availability 
and is estimated to take 14 business days.  Allowing for possible weather delays, project 
completion is anticipated by December 31, 2018. 

THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:  
How do we actively address non-revenue water loss in our water distribution system?  How do 
we prioritize repairs and replacement projects for the aging, leaking infrastructure in the water 
delivery system which is inefficient and costly to maintain?   
 
STAKEHOLDERS:  

• Citizens: City of Sweet Home residents and water system users will be better served 
with targeted repair and replacement projects resulting in improved system pressures 
and flows.  Likewise, a more efficient delivery system helps lower production and 
maintenance costs. 

• Staff: A comprehensive leak survey will allow staff to prioritize repairs and replacement 
projects proactively based on all actual leak locations, instead of reactively based on just 
the leaks that reach the road surface. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  

1. Waterline leak investigation and potential repairs are allocated within the Water Fund 
section of the adopted Operating Budget. 

2. The budgeted allocation for leak identification & repair is $100,000.  The proposal is 
$17,500. 

 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A decision by the Council to allow acceptance of a proposal per ORS and local bidding policies.   
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Reject the proposal and cancel project.  Not accepting the proposal would cause the 
project to come to a stop.  This option would allow unseen water leaks to continue 
without being identified, contributing to non-revenue water loss and delaying 
improvements to flow and pressure to residents. 

2. Reject the proposal and redefine project scope.  Similar to option 1 above, this option 
will not only delay identification of problems in the water distribution system, it may result 
in higher costs for the same amount of proposed work if it is rescheduled. 

3. Accept the proposal.  Accept the proposal submitted by American Leak Detection of 
Medford, Oregon in the total amount of $17,500, with a not-to-exceed contingency of 
10%.   

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends Council approve a motion for option #3: Accept the proposal submitted by 
American Leak Detection of Medford, Oregon in the total amount of $17,500, with a not-to-
exceed contingency of 10%.   

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.78



 
 

 
 
 
 

October 3, 2018 
 
 
Via email: price@ci.sweet-home.or.us 
 
Trish Rice 
Engineering Technician 
City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 
RE: Leak Detection Survey 
 
Dear Trish: 
 
We are pleased to present you with the following proposal for a leak detection survey. 
 
American Leak Detection will provide all labor, equipment, materials, and incidental expenses for 
the following price based on the information you provided.  Should actual conditions or mileage 
differ it may be necessary to discuss adjusting our rate appropriately. 
 

 
Survey Area:  Entire system – approx. 54 miles of line 
Leak Type:  Main Line and Distribution 
Per Diem:  N/A 
Travel:   N/A 
Daily Rate:  $1,250.00  
Total # of days: 14 
Total Proposal: $17,500.00 

  

 
This bid is based on the following information: 
 

• City will provide accurate, detailed information regarding location of lines to be surveyed, 
size and type of lines valve locations and access points. 

• City will provide one knowledgeable person to assist during the leak survey. 

• Daily rate covers the cost of one technician working 8 hrs. during normal business hours. 

• The price includes all reports as outlined and there will be no charge for follow-up phone 
calls or consulting time. 

• There are no additional fees for travel, per diem or mobilization. 
 
Please see attached detailed information.  We look forward to working with you. 

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.79

mailto:price@ci.sweet-home.or.us


 
 
Scope of Work 
 
American Leak Detection (ALD) will provide leak detection and survey on the water system for the 
City of Sweet Home (City).  A leak survey consists of using acoustical listening equipment along 
with leak correlation, ground micing, pipeline locating, and using inert test gases (helium and 
nitrogen) approved by the AWWA as the approved test gas needed for testing the system and 
locating leaks. 
 
The survey will record any leaks, irregularities or defects that may need to be addressed to 
maintain the integrity of the water system.  A comprehensive report will be submitted upon 
completion, which will identify leak locations, aid in prioritizing repairs and provide a record for 
future maintenance. 
 
 
Initial Survey 
 
The initial survey will be performed with a survey tool (listening device) to listen at all accessible 
contact points such as fire hydrants, valves, air vacs, curb stops, meters, and any available pipe.  
Normally contact points will be at intervals no greater than 350 feet.  Our goal is to be as thorough 
as possible and to find all leaks.  ALD does not perform only hydrant-to-hydrant testing unless 
requested to do so by the City.  The leak survey will begin at a pre-determined location and 
proceed, section by section, until all requested pipe sections are surveyed and suspected leak areas 
noted. 
 
If good contact is not available, a highly sensitive ground mike device will be used making physical 
contact to the ground over the pipe at intervals no greater than 6 feet.  If ground cover is not of a 
hard surface, probe rods will be used at intervals of 10 feet.  If ambient noise on a certain section 
during day times hours interferes with survey effectiveness, that section will be scheduled to be 
performed at night.  Additional costs may incur if survey is performed after hours.  During the 
survey process, high leak signal areas will be prioritized and reinvestigated before the pinpointing 
process is started. 
 
Estimated survey time / distance per day on metallic systems such as Steel, Galvanized, Ductile 
Iron, Cast Iron and Copper is an average of 3-5 miles per day.  For non-metallic systems such as 
PVC, C-900, Poly, C/A (asbestos cement) and cement lined cast iron, ground micing may be needed 
every 4-6 feet to see if leak(s) can be heard averaging 2-3 miles per day. 
 
ALD requires that the City provide one knowledgeable person on-call as needed to assist during 
the leak survey.  The employee will be responsible for the following: 
 

• Help technician in the placement of the sensor on the pipe. 

• Offer information on the pipe size, type and layout. 

• Act on behalf of the utility for public relations. 

• Open or close PRVs, related valves, fire hydrants or customer service valves. 

• Help direct traffic if needed and help insure the safety of all. 
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.80



 
 
Pinpointing Leaks 
 
As leaks are heard during the survey, leak correlation will be performed by setting up correlator 
sensors at valve, hydrants, or any point of contact.  Data such as pipe distances between sensors, 
pipe type and diameter of each segment, will be collected.  This information will be entered into 
the correlator’s main unit, and then put through a series of filters to help determine the location 
of a leak.  A correlator must hear leak noise to locate a leak.  The ability to hear leak noise and 
locate a leak depends on the pipe material and size of the leak.  Accurate pipe data is crucial to the 
correlation process. 
 
Individual leak locates average about thirty minutes to one hour each, if there is no interference.  
The length of time for the pinpointing process will be determined by the number of correlator set-
ups are required to confirm each leak.  We normally perform at least two different set-ups to 
confirm each leak location. 
 
Ground micing will be performed to assist in confirming leaks and will also be used to listen to 
segment of the distribution lines that are A/C, C-900 and plastic/poly.  Ground micing on the 
surface above these lines will be performed every 4-6 feet.  These are low frequency materials that 
do not allow leak sound to travel great distances and leaks can be difficult to hear. 
 
Pipe line locating will be used as needed to assist with locating leaks.  Line locators work only on 
metallic materials such as steel, copper, ductile iron, and cast iron, depending on the type of 
connections.  Rubber connecting joints can hinder electrical currents from traveling any great 
distances. 
 
Inert test gas and electronic inert gas detection equipment may be used as needed to help identify 
the location of leaks.  This will help locate small leaks or leaks that are not producing enough leak 
noise to be heard by other listening devices due to pipe material, soil, and the position and type 
of leak. 
 
If leak(s) are being difficult to detect due to distance, pipe material, size of leak or other factors, 
valving off certain segments, pot holing at certain dedicated distances and increased pressure may 
need to be coordinated with system to help identify leak locations.  This is a last resort of testing 
but under certain circumstances could be the only way of narrowing the leak location. 
 
 
Leak Report 
 
ALD will use daily worksheets to identify all points of contact and sections tested.  If available, we 
will use a copy of the system map to highlight all tested areas, indicate location of leaks and identify 
any areas of concern.  All daily testing results, leak locations, estimated size of leaks, and the total 
number of leaks found will be entered into a final report for documentation for the system.  During 
the pinpointing process the technician will also record the confirmed leak locations with a Trimble 
GIS mapping system.  This process will enable ALD to provide the City with a KML file for confirmed 
leak locations that can be viewed using Google Maps or Google Earth. 
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.81



 
 
Results vary greatly depending on the pipe type and age, system pressure, bedding materials and 
the total percentage of non-revenue water.  ALD will provide a very thorough leak survey by 
listening to every accessible contact point. All daily testing results, leak locations, estimated size of 
leaks, and the total number of leaks found will be entered into a final report for documentation of 
the survey.   
 
 
Project Schedule 
 
Once notice to proceed is received, we can normally schedule work to commence within 2 weeks.  
If only a partial day is required, we can normally schedule within one week. We would be able to 
accommodate the City’s schedule upon short notice if an emergency or circumstance should arise 
requiring postponement or delay of the survey.  Since we are locally based in Oregon we would be 
available for on-site follow-up or consultation regarding marked leak locations. 
 
 
Qualifications 
 
American Leak Detection of Oregon and SW Washington has been in operation for over 16 years.  
In that time we have successfully served many municipalities, water districts and large industries 
throughout the region.  Projects have ranged from a few hours to weeks and all have included 
thorough reports and follow-up.  As members of professional organizations such as OAWU, 
AWWA, and LOC, we are keenly aware of the needs of the water districts and municipalities in our 
area.  A list of the municipalities we have worked for and a list of current recommendations can 
be provided upon request. 
 
We have completed surveys on many water systems throughout the state of Oregon and SW 
Washington and we also provide on-going leak detection service to a multitude of cities on an “as-
needed” short term basis.  We have eight highly trained technicians that are fully equipped with 
all the necessary equipment needed to complete any type of leak detection.  Our technicians are 
based in Medford, Grants Pass, Bend, Eugene, Salem, Portland and Vancouver, WA. 
 
We provide emergency response service 7 days a week 24 hours a day.  We are readily available 
and will to return for confirmation of a specific leak location or additional pipe sections after 
completion of the initial survey.  We take a great deal of pride in our business and strive to provide 
not only the best leak detection service, but also the best customer service and follow-up available. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.82



 
 
 
PROPOSAL ACCEPTED: 
 
 
Please sign below indicating acceptance of our proposal and return via facsimile to 888/999-5325 
or email to sbotermans@americanleak.com. We will contact you about scheduling. 
 
 
 
             
Signature       Date 
 
 
Print name and title:        

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.83

mailto:sbotermans@americanleak.com


Record of staff attempts to get 3 quotes for municipal water leak detection: 
 
5-17-17 began Google search for leak detection companies that do municipal surveys. Only 
local company found is American Leak Detection. Next was Innovative Leak Detection out of 
Washington. Other local companies appear to do small residential leaks. 
5-18-17 called Innovative Leak Detection.  They said they would forward my inquiry to the head 
and he would contact me.  I never heard from him. 
5-18-17 called American Leak Detection.  Received proposal via email on 5-19-17. 
5-18-17 asked Tom Aldrich w/Ferguson if he knew of any other companies. 
5-22-17 Tom replied that he would check. 
8-30-17 began to revisit the topic.  Emailed colleagues to find out names of other leak detection 
companies: asked coworkers Norm and Dominic, Tom Aldrich of Ferguson Waterworks, Sean 
Love of BRX Construction, and Ken Zahler of ML Houck Construction. 
8-30-17 filled out online contact form on Innovative Leak Detection website. 
8-31-17 Ken Zahler provided contact info for Advanced Leak Detection.  Email inquiry sent to 
Advanced Leak Detection. 
8-31-17 did another Google search.  Filled out online contact form on Accurate Leak Detection 
website. 
9-1-17 received email reply from Accurate Leak Detection. He is the only tech in the company 
(he is the company) and not able to do a project this large.  He recommended American Leak 
Detection. 
9-6-17 received call back from Advanced Leak Detection. He is the only tech in the company 
(he is the company) and not able to do a project this large.  He did not know any others beside 
American Leak Detection b/c there are so few leak detect companies and they are so big & well 
known.  He compared them to Roto Rooter for recognition/monopoly.  They actually send work 
to him when they are too busy. 
9-14-17 received email back from Tom Aldrich of Ferguson with contact info for Accurate Leak 
Detection.  Have already heard back from Accurate that he can't do this project. 
 
2-15-18 requested updated quote from American Leak Detection for budgeting. 
2-16-18 received updated quote from American Leak Detection. 
 
10-2-18 requested updated quote from American Leak Detection to confirm final pricing. 
10-3-18 received updated quote from American Leak Detection 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.84



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
PREFERRED AGENDA: 
October 23, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Chief Jeff Lynn 
REVIEWED:   
 

TITLE:   
Peer Court IGA 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution; IGA 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
   X  RESOLUTION 
 _   MOTION 
     OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:   
Present the Sweet Home City Council with the opportunity to renew the Intergovernmental 
Agreement between Linn County and the City of Sweet Home associated with Peer Court and 
the attached Resolution for 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The Sweet Home Police Department has worked in cooperation with Linn County Juvenile 
Department to host a Peer Court in our community. Peer Court has been ongoing in Sweet 
Home since its inception in 2009. 
 
Peer Court is designed to allow for a peer on peer review of non-violent juvenile offenses such 
as MIP – Tobacco, MIP – Alcohol, Curfew and Harassment type calls.  
 
The attached chart represents the number and types of cases that have gone through Peer 
Court since 2010. 
 

 
 
THE CHALLENGE:    
The challenges associated with Peer Court are minimal. The department does utilize staff time 
(Community Service Officer) to manage, organize and run Peer Court.  
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   

● City of Sweet Home Juveniles and Parents/Guardians. Peer Court provides a local 
option for minor juvenile offenses to be resolved through peer to peer review.  

● Sweet Home Police Department.  Time and resources that could potentially be spent 
elsewhere.  

● Linn County Juvenile Department. Peer Court provides another outlet and resource for 
the Juvenile Department to assist in appropriately addressing juvenile issues.  

 
 
 
ISSUES & FINACIAL IMPACTS: 

1. Police Department – The Sweet Home Police Department does budget $1000 
associated with Peer Court which, absent Peer Court, could be diverted to other areas. 

 

Curfew Runaway

Theft 3 

(SL)

Theft 2  

(SL)

MIP 

Tobacco

MIP 

Alcohol

MIP 
Marijuana REAP CM3 CM2 CT3 DISCon1 TOTALS

2009-2010 13 3 5 0 37 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 61

2010-2011 18 5 2 0 11 1 2 1 8 1 0 0 49

2011-2012 18 7 3 0 11 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 43

2012-2013 25 18 3 0 5 1 2 0 1 0 0 0 55

2013-2014 8 8 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 21

2014-2015 13 14 0 0 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 32

2015-2016 1 9 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13

2016-2017 3 17 1 1 11 0 3 0 0 0 0 2 38

2017-2018 8 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11

107 83 16 1 83 5 14 2 9 1 0 2 323

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.85



OPTIONS: 
1. Do Nothing.  The City Council can choose to take no action and allow the IGA to end 

without replacement.    
2. Approve the attached 2018 Resolution authorizing the City to enter into the 

Intergovernmental Agreement with Linn County.  This option would extend Peer Court 
through July of 2019.  

3. Move to end Peer Court. The City Council could choose to end the City’s involvement in 
Peer Court. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 I recommend option #2, Approve the attached 2018 Resolution authorizing the City to 
enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement with Linn County.  Peer Court is not an answer to 
juvenile problems or juvenile sanctions, but it does provide another form of review for the Linn 
County Juvenile Department to consider. I believe that the time and resources spent by the 
Police Department are outweighed by the opportunities that Peer Court presents to the Justice 
System as it attempts to deal with juvenile offenders.  
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.86



 
 

 
 

HOW PEER COURT WORKS 

Below is a brief explanation of how Peer Court works. It includes the criteria used to determine if 
a juvenile offender is eligible for Peer Court, the typical process and the most common forms of 
sanctions. 

CRITERIA  

To be eligible for consideration in Peer Court, the following conditions must be met: 

Offender is under 18 years of age (or actively enrolled in SH School District 
First or second time offender 
Admission of guilt regarding the offense 
Consent by both offender and Parent/Guardian 

The list below are the typical offenses heard by the court: 

Runaway 
Curfew Violation 
Minor in possession of Tobacco  
Minor in possession of Marijuana 
Minor in possession of Alcohol 
Littering 
Criminal Trespass 
Theft 3 
Criminal Mischief 
Reckless Burning 
Assault 4 
Disorderly Conduct 
Harassment 
Carrying a concealed weapon 

PROCESS 

When a juvenile offender is contacted by a police officer, they will be referred to the Linn 
County Juvenile Department (LCJD).  Then they will be scheduled for an interview with 
the offender and their parent or guardian to determine if the offender is eligible for the 
program and if they agree to complete the program. Sometimes LCJD does not do an 
intake interview – they just send Sweet Home Peer Court the referral and we do the 
intake interview. 

An appearance date is scheduled, and the offender appears, with a parent or guardian, 
to have the case heard. The presiding Judge is a local adult or student volunteer who 
will ensure that all legal requirements are met. Students will act as Case Presenters, to 
summarize the case and present any circumstances that may have an effect on 

City of Sweet Home 
1950 Main Street 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-5181 

Fax 541-367-5235 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

shpd@ci.sweet-home.or.us 
 

Sweet Home Police Department 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.87



sentence. Finally, a jury composed of other student volunteers and former offenders will 
decide the appropriate sentence in the case.  

Sentencing will normally involve community service, restitution when appropriate, and 
will always include future service as a peer court juror. At any point during the process, 
an offender who fails to carry out sentencing is automatically turned over to the Juvenile 
courts for prosecution. Peer Court allows the offender a "second chance" in avoiding the 
system. Once the sentence is successfully completed, all record of the offense may be 
removed from the youth’s legal record.  

SANCTIONS  

The following are typical sanctions imposed by Peer Court:  

       Complete a Homework Pkt. (ALL offenders) 
       Community Service hours shall consist of 0-10 hours 
       Linn Co. Work Crew for anything over 8 hours 
       Maximum number of words given for essay: 500 
       Verbal or hand-written letter of apology  
       Restitution (if deemed necessary) 
       All defendants must sit as a juror at least once on a future case 
       Attend Life Choices Class 
       Attend Victims Impact panel 
       Attend Anger Management classes 
       Attend Drug/Alcohol evaluation and follow recommendations  
       Attend a Smoking Cessation Class 

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.88



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.89



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.90



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.91



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.92



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.93



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.94



 RESOLUTION NO. 16 FOR 2018 
 
 
A RESOLUTION CONCERNING PEER COURT INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN LINN COUNTY AND THE CITY OF SWEET HOME. 
 
WHEREAS, the City council of the City of Sweet Home has determined that the 
continued operation of Peer Court is in the best interests of the City and its citizens; 
 
WHEREAS, funding has been confirmed for the 2018-2019 fiscal year for Peer Court; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Sweet Home 
that the City Manager and other officials are authorized to sign the attached 
Intergovernmental Agreement – Peer Court Approval.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, unless revoked by the further City Council action, 
city officials are authorized to sign future Peer Court agreements each year as long 
as funding for such Peer Court operations has been confirmed and is set forth in the 
City of Sweet Home Budget.   
 
 This resolution shall be effective upon the date of passage and approval. 
 
 
PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 23rd day of October 2018. 
 
 

       
              Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
       
City Manager - Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.95



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.96



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.97



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.98



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.99



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.100



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.101



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.102



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.103



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.104



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.105



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.106



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.107



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.108



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.109



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.110



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.111



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.112



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.113



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.114



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.115



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.116



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.117



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.118



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.119



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.120



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.121



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.122



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.123



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.124



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.125



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.126



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.127



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.128



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.129



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.130



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.131



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.132



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.133



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.134



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.135



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.136



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.137



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.138



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.139



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.140



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.141



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.142



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.143



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.144



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.145



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.146



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.147



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.148



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.149



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.150



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.151



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.152



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.153



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.154



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.155



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.156



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.157



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.158



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.159



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.160



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.161



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.162



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.163



City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.164



 
To:  City Council 
  Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
From:  Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
 
Subject: Finance Department Monthly Report – September 2018 
 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for the for the fiscal management of the City of Sweet 
Home. This includes accounts payable, payroll, general accounting, preparing the annual 
budget and the city’s annual audit. This department also administers the city’s assessment 
docket, coordinates employee’s benefits and maintains financial records relating to grants and 
contracts. The following information represents the department’s activities during the month of 
September 2018. 
 
Accounts Payable: 
The Finance Department maintains a weekly schedule for AP disbursements when possible. 
City departments submit documentation through Springbrook to request payment to vendors. 
Once the Finance Department has a completed purchase order and invoice/receipt, a check is 
printed and mailed within seven (7) business days. 
 
For the month of September 2018, 162 checks were printed totaling $778,956.78. A list of the 
checks is provided for your review. Below is a list of the checks that were equal to or exceeded 
$5,000 and their purpose (if not clear on list). 
 
 
Check No. Vendor Description Amount 

0 EBS Trust Monthly group 
insurance premium $74,675.51 

87730 American Bank & 
Trust 

1st lease payment for 
Police Patrol Vehicle $14,439.00 

87760 Game Time Playground 
Equipment $6,475.98 

87822 MurraySmith Professional 
engineering services $53,353.41 

87847 Oregon DEQ Debt service 
payment $259,782.00 

87849 American Bank & 
Trust 

2nd lease payment for 
Police Patrol Vehicle $13,496.00 

87855 Linn Benton Tractor 
Co. Leaf vacuum $6,890.00 

 
 
 
 
 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-5128 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Finance Department 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.165



Passports: 
Since 2001, the city has been accepting passport applications for the United States 
Department of State. Travelers can call, stop by city hall or visit the city’s website for 
information on application requirements. 
 
For the month of September 2018, the city processed 24 passports and took 20 passport 
pictures. 
 
Lien Searches: 
 
The city has various liens that can be applied to properties in Sweet Home. The city can apply 
a lien for past due utility balances or a property owner can place a lien on their property for 
improvement assessments per ORS. An internet database maintains a list of these liens and is 
searchable by title companies for paying off outstanding balances during a sale. Each lien 
search generates $25.00 for the city. 
 
For the month of September 2018, 84 lien searches were completed. 
 
Utility Billing: 
In July 2017, utility billing became the responsibility of the Finance Department. Utility billing is 
responsible for the timely reading of water meters in the city and distribution of bills to 
residents and businesses. The revenue generated from the utility bills covers the costs 
associated with operating and maintaining the Water Treatment Plant and the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant as well as the maintenance of the city’s distribution and collection systems. 
 
For the month of September 2018, the city processed 226 service requests and saw 14 new 
customers open accounts in Sweet Home. In total, 47 accounts were opened and 42 were 
closed. The city processed 3,281 utility billing statements and 1,084 past due notices. 48 
accounts were turned off for non-payment on September 8, 2018. 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.166



CITY OF SWEET HOME

Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg

Variance

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Notes

Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget

Executive

Other 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0
Total Revenues 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0

Personnel Services (65,238) 25% 3% (256,739) (260,598) (260,598) 0
Materials, Services & Capital (6,155) 0% -67% (1) (47,165) (1,255,989) (1,255,989) 0

Total Expenditures (71,393) 5% -13% (303,903) (1,516,587) (1,516,587) 0
Net from Operations (71,393) (303,903) (1,516,587) (1,516,587) 0

Finance

Fees 34,069 22% 12% 177,777 155,612 155,612 0
Other 870 3% -86% (2) 31,233 28,535 28,535 0

Total Revenues 34,939 19% -5% 209,011 184,147 184,147 0

Personnel Services (134,833) 25% -7% (3) (603,553) (582,312) (548,570) 33,742 (3)
Materials, Services & Capital (13,475) 10% -44% (4) (119,944) (128,950) (128,950) 0

Total Expenditures (148,308) 22% -12% (723,497) (711,262) (677,520) 33,742
Net from Operations (113,369) (514,487) (527,115) (493,373) 33,742

Community & Economic Development

Fees 3,304 27% 37% 15,247 12,420 12,420 0
Other 36,614 17% -27% 180,596 150,023 218,680 68,657 (5)

Total Revenues 39,918 17% -24% 195,843 162,443 231,100 68,657

Personnel Services (87,790) 25% 35% (328,725) (486,124) (349,616) 136,508 (6)
Materials, Services & Capital (11,437) 2% -15% (55,856) (611,302) (611,302) 0

Total Expenditures (99,227) 10% 27% (384,581) (1,097,426) (960,918) 136,508
Net from Operations (59,310) (188,738) (934,983) (729,818) 205,165

As of September 30, 2018

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as

a % of

Projected YTD

Prior

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.167



CITY OF SWEET HOME

Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg

Variance

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Notes

Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget

As of September 30, 2018

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as

a % of

Projected YTD

Prior

Library

Property Taxes 10,054 3% 250% (7) 351,762 381,043 388,588 7,545
Fees 937 28% -31% 4,731 5,500 3,373 (2,127)
Other 1,240 25% -33% 23,674 5,000 5,000 0

Total Revenues 12,232 3% 101% 380,167 391,543 396,961 5,418

Personnel Services (51,118) 25% 21% (170,808) (208,567) (208,567) 0
Materials, Services & Capital (32,035) 11% 13% (108,251) (289,708) (289,708) 0

Total Expenditures (83,152) 17% 18% (279,059) (498,275) (498,275) 0
Net from Operations (70,921) 101,109 (106,732) (101,314) 5,418

Police

Property Taxes 75,010 3% 260% (7) 2,364,203 2,567,909 2,625,237 57,328
Fees 75 25% 275% 695 300 300 0
Other 11,859 13% -12% 149,959 94,431 94,431 0

Total Revenues 86,944 3% 153% 2,514,857 2,662,640 2,719,968 57,328

Personnel Services (525,084) 25% -5% (2,205,566) (2,219,878) (2,105,765) 114,113
Materials, Services & Capital (55,141) 13% -8% (301,563) (433,584) (433,584) 0

Total Expenditures (580,225) 23% -6% (2,507,129) (2,653,462) (2,539,349) 114,113
Net from Operations (493,281) 7,727 9,178 180,619 171,441

PW Parks

Fees 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0
Other 395 12% -45% 2,791 3,166 3,166 0

Total Revenues 395 12% -45% 2,791 3,166 3,166 0

Personnel Services (49,565) 25% 96% (129,853) (195,927) (195,927) 0
Materials, Services & Capital (36,587) 14% 941% (53,314) (270,486) (270,486) 0

Total Expenditures (86,152) 18% 199% (183,167) (466,413) (466,413) 0
Net from Operations (85,757) (180,376) (463,247) (463,247) 0

PW Water

User Fees 778,558 33% 9% 2,109,892 2,367,349 2,367,349 0
Fees 28,188 44% 39% 63,459 10,250 63,459 53,209 (8)
Other 36 n/a n/a 780 0 0 0

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.168



CITY OF SWEET HOME

Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg

Variance

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Notes

Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget

As of September 30, 2018

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as

a % of

Projected YTD

Prior

Total Revenues 806,782 33% 9% 2,174,131 2,377,599 2,430,808 53,209

Personnel Services (103,596) 23% 23% (332,759) (445,031) (445,031) 0
Materials, Services & Capital (83,535) 6% -68% (849,818) (1,480,640) (1,480,640) 0
Debt 0 0% n/a (498,591) (501,216) (501,216) 0

Total Expenditures (187,130) 8% -46% (1,681,168) (2,426,887) (2,426,887) 0
Net from Operations 619,652 492,964 (49,288) 3,921 53,209

PW Wastewater

User Fees 721,429 23% 25% 2,674,840 3,108,772 3,108,772 0
Fees 7,461 26% 0% 24,703 13,500 29,104 15,604 (8)
Other 0 0% n/a 0 2,000,000 2,000,000 0

Total Revenues 728,890 14% 25% 2,699,543 5,122,272 5,137,876 15,604

Personnel Services (82,921) 27% -25% (405,733) (307,014) (307,014) 0
Materials, Services & Capital (274,924) 17% 21% (825,207) (1,578,285) (1,578,285) 0
Debt (259,782) 30% 0% (881,177) (877,769) (877,769) 0

Total Expenditures (617,627) 22% 3% (2,112,116) (2,763,068) (2,763,068) 0
Net from Operations 111,263 587,427 2,359,204 2,374,808 15,604

PW Storm

User Fees 15,656 25% 1% 61,951 61,962 61,962 0
Fees 0 n/a n/a 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0% n/a 0 1,616 1,616 0

Total Revenues 15,656 25% 1% 61,951 63,578 63,578 0

Personnel Services (24,164) 38% 31% (73,783) (63,891) (63,891) 0
Materials, Services & Capital 0 0% n/a (4,490) (61,930) (61,930) 0

Total Expenditures (24,164) 19% 31% (78,273) (125,821) (125,821) 0
Net from Operations (8,509) (16,322) (62,243) (62,243) 0

PW Streets

Gas Tax 188,502 29% 102% 482,445 658,843 658,843 0
Other 0 0% -100% 180 13,479 13,479 0

Total Revenues 188,502 28% 102% 482,625 672,322 672,322 0

Personnel Services (74,720) 20% -6% (299,110) (379,776) (379,776) 0

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.169



CITY OF SWEET HOME

Quarterly Projections
(Unaudited, non-GAAP, For projection purposes only)

 % chg

Variance

YTD Notes Prior Yr. Adopted Projected from Adp. Notes

Actual Actual Budget 6/30/2019  Budget

As of September 30, 2018

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

ProjectionsBudgetYear-to-Date 

Current/YTD as

a % of

Projected YTD

Prior

Materials, Services & Capital (23,767) 3% -48% (115,468) (894,100) (894,100) 0
Total Expenditures (98,487) 8% -21% (414,578) (1,273,876) (1,273,876) 0
Net from Operations 90,016 68,047 (601,554) (601,554) 0

Non-Departmental

Property Taxes 23,591 3% 263% (7) 636,835 672,294 690,743 18,449
Fees 124,719 21% 76% 667,664 602,963 602,963 0
Other 70,364 13% 37% 554,346 533,765 533,765 0

Total Revenues 218,674 12% 70% 1,858,846 1,809,022 1,827,471 18,449

Personnel Services (34,645) 25% 125% (61,436) (140,903) (140,903) 0
Materials, Services & Capital (289,546) 38% -3% (774,974) (769,914) (769,914) 0

Total Expenditures (324,191) 36% 4% (836,410) (910,817) (910,817) 0
Net from Operations (105,517) 1,022,435 898,205 916,654 18,449

Notes:
(1) Timing difference resulted in less expenses in current year for Executive/Council than prior year.
(2) Lower than anticipated passport applications/photos. No change to projected expenses.
(3) Vacancy savings resulted in revised projection for Finance/Muni Court personnel expenses.
(4) Timing difference of Springbrook payments resulted in lower expenses in current year.

No change to projected expenses.
(5) Increased projected Other Revenue due to increase in permits to-date.
(6) Savings anticipated in CED personnel expenses due to filling of Assoc. Planner budgeted as Planning Svcs. Mgr.
(7) Property tax revenue increases due to unanticipated receipt of tax money for Comcast settlement.
(8) Increased fee revenue for water and wastewater due to increased connection fee revenue to-date.

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.170



User:

Printed: 10/16/2018 -  9:15AM

bneish

Bank Reconciliation

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Checks by Date

Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

9/13/2018 0 FEDERAL PAYROLL TAXES AP  21,735.55

9/13/2018 0 CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNTING UNIT AP  918.00

9/13/2018 0 SWEET HOME POLICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION AP  1,200.00

9/13/2018 0 OREGON PAYROLL TAXES AP  10,588.48

9/13/2018 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 300619 AP  3,670.00

9/13/2018 0 EBS TRUST AP  74,675.51

9/13/2018 0 PERS AP  13,626.15

9/13/2018 0 MEDICARE AP  7,890.77

9/13/2018 0 ASI-PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  120.00

9/13/2018 0 NATIONWIDE-PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  1,900.00

9/13/2018 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 705507 AP  458.33

9/13/2018 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 108524/109047 AP  25,897.94

9/13/2018 0 HSA - PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  775.00

9/13/2018 0 AFLAC AP  831.22

9/13/2018 0 FICA PAYROLL TAXES AP  33,171.84

9/13/2018 0 FIRST INVESTORS - PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  350.00

9/13/2018 87725 CREDITORS COLLECTION SERVICE, INC. AP  1,136.18

9/13/2018 87726 OREGON AFSCME COUNCIL 75 AP  732.38

9/13/2018 87727 STEELHEAD STRENGTH & FITNESS, LLC AP  717.40

9/13/2018 87728 SWEET HOME COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AP  155.00

9/13/2018 87729 UNITED WAY AP  40.00

9/14/2018 87730 American Bank & Trust AP  14,439.00

9/14/2018 87731 Leasing Specialists, LLC. AP  400.00

9/17/2018 87732 KARI BECKNER AP  125.91

9/17/2018 87733 BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING AP  266.17

9/17/2018 87734 BRANDON GREGORY AP  100.00

9/17/2018 87735 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES AP  2,123.88

9/17/2018 87736 PATTY LARSEN AP  35.22

9/17/2018 87737 DOUGLAS MILLS AP  15.79

9/17/2018 87738 NATIONAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP AP  35.19

9/17/2018 87739 MAYZELL & JOHN TUCHARDT AP  19.43

9/17/2018 87740 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  9.96

9/18/2018 0 ADVANCES AP  13,300.00

9/18/2018 0 ASI-PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  11.25

9/18/2018 0 FEDERAL PAYROLL TAXES AP  4,694.90

9/18/2018 0 OREGON PAYROLL TAXES AP  2,660.00

9/18/2018 87741 911 SUPPLY AP  503.92

9/18/2018 87742 ACCELA, INC. #774375 AP  4,029.50

9/18/2018 87743 AHA CONSULTING, INC. AP  3,100.00

9/18/2018 87744 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES AP  478.80

9/18/2018 87745 BACKFLOW MANAGEMENT, INC. AP  1,830.00

9/18/2018 87746 BENTLEY SYSTEMS, INC. AP  207.75

9/18/2018 87747 BI-MART CORPORATION AP  143.89

9/18/2018 87748 BULLARD LAW AP  4,756.50

9/18/2018 87749 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  88,439.17

9/18/2018 87750 CITY DELIVERY SERVICE AP  18.95

BR-Checks by Date (10/16/2018 -  9:15 AM) Page 1

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.171



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

9/18/2018 87751 Lynetta Corley AP  29.48

9/18/2018 87752 DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE AP  832.60

9/18/2018 87753 BOB DALTON AP  274.93

9/18/2018 87754 DAN DEE SALES AP  560.90

9/18/2018 87755 DAY MANAGEMENT CORPORATION AP  3,835.00

9/18/2018 87756 CONNIE DEBUSSCHERE AP  232.60

9/18/2018 87757 DEMCO AP  314.75

9/18/2018 87758 FEENAUGHTY MACHINERY CO. AP  332.04

9/18/2018 87759 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 - METER ACCT #46780 AP  2,456.00

9/18/2018 87760 GAME TIME AP  6,475.98

9/18/2018 87761 GATEWAY IMPRINTS, INC. AP  35.00

9/18/2018 87762 GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC. AP  250.00

9/18/2018 87763 JAMES GOURLEY AP  351.36

9/18/2018 87764 GOVERNMENT ETHICS COMMISSION AP  570.14

9/18/2018 87765 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES AP  1,482.44

9/18/2018 87766 HOY'S TRUE VALUE AP  1,589.16

9/18/2018 87767 HUTCHINS WELDING AND REPAIR, LLC AP  1,516.60

9/18/2018 87768 INDUSTRIAL WELDING SUPPLY, INC. AP  21.96

9/18/2018 87769 INTERTECH, INC. AP  468.15

9/18/2018 87770 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL AP  590.85

9/18/2018 87771 KIP AMERICA, INC. AP  480.00

9/18/2018 87772 LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES AP  75.00

9/18/2018 87773 LEBANON OREGONIAN AP  300.00

9/18/2018 87774 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER AP  1,244.08

9/18/2018 87775 LESTER SALES AP  11.85

9/18/2018 87776 LEXIPOL, LLC AP  3,562.00

9/18/2018 87777 LINN COUNTY MEDICAL EXAMINER AP  3,600.00

9/18/2018 87778 METEREADERS, LLC AP  1,973.16

9/18/2018 87779 Howland Mindi AP  16.95

9/18/2018 87780 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  2,183.05

9/18/2018 87781 NATIONAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP AP  29.63

9/18/2018 87782 NEW ERA AP  1,006.82

9/18/2018 87783 ONE CALL CONCEPTS AP  33.60

9/18/2018 87784 OREGON LIBRARY ASSOCIATION AP  25.00

9/18/2018 87785 Oregon Recreation and Park AP  460.00

9/18/2018 87786 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  28.01

9/18/2018 87787 OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. AP  2,374.00

9/18/2018 87788 PACWEST MACHINERY, LLC AP  1,354.39

9/18/2018 87789 PEAK HEARING SYSTEMS, LLC AP  25.00

9/18/2018 87790 PETROCARD AP  3,175.20

9/18/2018 87791 RENEWABLE RESOURCE GROUP, INC. AP  80.00

9/18/2018 87792 SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY AP  156.00

9/18/2018 87793 SELECTEMP CORPORATION AP  5,871.80

9/18/2018 87794 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  324.02

9/18/2018 87795 SWEET HOME ROTARY AP  634.92

9/18/2018 87796 THE REGISTER-GUARD AP  301.60

9/18/2018 87797 TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO., INC. AP  45.80

9/18/2018 87798 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  632.75

9/18/2018 87799 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AP  5,237.50

9/18/2018 87800 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING AP  49.00

9/18/2018 87801 HOY'S TRUE VALUE AP  13.48

9/21/2018 87802 ALBERTSONS / SAFEWAY AP  46.50

9/21/2018 87803 AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORP. AP  901.80

9/21/2018 87804 ANDERSON ENTERPRISES AP  300.80

9/21/2018 87805 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES AP  102.00

9/21/2018 87806 DOLORES BROWNELL AP  19.43

BR-Checks by Date (10/16/2018 -  9:15 AM) Page 2

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.172



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

9/21/2018 87807 BUCK'S SANITARY SERVICE, INC. AP  348.00

9/21/2018 87808 BULLARD LAW AP  913.50

9/21/2018 87809 ALLEN BUZZARD AP  48.17

9/21/2018 87810 CASCADE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE, INC. AP  3,154.00

9/21/2018 87811 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT AP  175.56

9/21/2018 87812 COMCAST AP  1,553.44

9/21/2018 87813 DEMCO AP  240.17

9/21/2018 87814 DOUGLAS GRAHAM AP  18.89

9/21/2018 87815 Desi Housley AP  40.00

9/21/2018 87816 GERALD HOWARD AP  20.00

9/21/2018 87817 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER AP  397.53

9/21/2018 87818 LIBERTY ROCK PRODUCTS, INC. AP  474.39

9/21/2018 87819 LINN BENTON TRACTOR CO. AP  23.01

9/21/2018 87820 LINN COUNTY RECORDER AP  99.00

9/21/2018 87821 CHAYHOWA MCELHINNY AP  35.00

9/21/2018 87822 MURRAYSMITH AP  53,353.41

9/21/2018 87823 NEW ERA AP  521.96

9/21/2018 87824 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  119.48

9/21/2018 87825 NW APPAREL & GRAPHICS AP  232.00

9/21/2018 87826 O & M POINT S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. AP  50.00

9/21/2018 87827 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  15.50

9/21/2018 87828 PACWEST MACHINERY, LLC AP  635.79

9/21/2018 87829 ALEX PERKINS AP  30.00

9/21/2018 87830 PETROCARD AP  3,428.24

9/21/2018 87831 POLLARD WATER AP  8.56

9/21/2018 87832 SAIF CORPORATION AP  75.00

9/21/2018 87833 SANTIAM DISCOUNT VARIETY AP  40.00

9/21/2018 87834 SELECTEMP CORPORATION AP  2,072.40

9/21/2018 87835 SHAMROCK SUPPLY COMPANY, INC. AP  29.00

9/21/2018 87836 SIERRA SPRINGS AP  49.13

9/21/2018 87837 Special Asphalt Products AP  1,800.00

9/21/2018 87838 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  432.72

9/21/2018 87839 SURE-CLEAN NORTHWEST, INC. AP  169.00

9/21/2018 87840 SWEET HOME ELKS LODGE #1972 BPOE AP  135.00

9/21/2018 87841 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  462.57

9/21/2018 87842 VERIZON WIRELESS AP  1,214.15

9/21/2018 87843 D. MACK WALLS AP  160.00

9/21/2018 87844 WILCO AP  354.17

9/21/2018 87845 WILDISH SAND & GRAVEL CO. AP  176.49

9/21/2018 87846 Cody Wilson AP  50.00

9/21/2018 87847 OREGON DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AP  259,782.00

9/21/2018 87848 SCOTT EDWARDS ARCHITECTURE, LLP AP  15,313.50

9/28/2018 87849 American Bank & Trust AP  13,496.00

9/28/2018 87850 COLDWELL BANKER BRANSON/ASSOC AP  12.99

9/28/2018 87851 CENTURYLINK AP  1,365.08

9/28/2018 87852 DEMCO AP  723.86

9/28/2018 87853 Falcon Shoring Company AP  2,869.68

9/28/2018 87854 JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD AP  198.30

9/28/2018 87855 LINN BENTON TRACTOR CO. AP  6,890.00

9/28/2018 87856 LINN COUNTY PRINTING & SUPPLIES AP  81.70

9/28/2018 87857 JAMES MEHN AP  22.27

9/28/2018 87858 NATIONAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP AP  47.76

9/28/2018 87859 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST AP  999.37

9/28/2018 87860 NEW ERA AP  375.00

9/28/2018 87861 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  38.10

9/28/2018 87862 OREGON PERMIT TECHNICIANS ASSOC. AP  225.00

BR-Checks by Date (10/16/2018 -  9:15 AM) Page 3

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.173



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

9/28/2018 87863 SYNCB/AMAZON AP  1,693.78

9/28/2018 87864 VALLEY FIRE CONTROL, INC. AP  276.50

9/28/2018 87865 BRITTEN WESTOVER AP  28.74

9/28/2018 87866 Thomas Robey AP  131.91

Total Check Count:  162

Total Check Amount:  778,956.78

BR-Checks by Date (10/16/2018 -  9:15 AM) Page 4

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.174



  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.175



  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.176



  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.177



 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.178



 
 
             
             
             
             
   
 

September happenings at the Library! 

Statistics 
Patrons checked out 2,898 items and renewed 857 items. 
 
Patrons placed 221 items on hold.  
 
Staff issued 35 new library cards to patrons and 14 nonresident cards. 
 
337 individuals signed on to use the computers in the library and printed 556 pages. 
 
Resource sharing savings was $2,886.23 in September.   
 
 
Events 
 
We launched a new online learning tool!  Lynda.com.  
 
Tuesday afternoon programs are back!  We hosted Creature Teachers with their weird and 
wonderful critters.  We had 120 children and adults attend this program. We also hosted Adam 
Miller who played the autoharp and sang songs about the history of the labor movement.  We 
had 25 attend the program.  
 
We will be hosting the New York Times bestselling author, Andra Watkins who wrote, “Not 
without My Father” on Friday, October 19 at 5pm.  Traveling Lantern Theater will present a live 
performance of Pinocchio on Tuesday, October 18 at 4pm.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted by - Rose Peda, Library Services Director 
October, 2018 

City of Sweet Home 
Sweet Home Public Library 

1101 – 13th Avenue 
Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5007 
 
 
 
 
 

Sweet Home Public Library 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.179



QUARTERLY CIRCULATION STATISTICS

BY ITEM TYPE

2018 July August September

Auto Manuals 0 0 0

Books on CD 115 95 96

Children's Board Books 138 115 122

Children's Easy Readers 346 248 238

Children's Fiction 501 403 228

Children's Graphic Novels 140 137 96

Children's NonFiction 283 182 222

Children's Picture Books 546 499 530

Children's Ready to Read 123 147 108

DVDs 833 766 533

Fiction 332 445 330

Magazines 44 51 32

Music CD 53 42 43

Mystery 299 324 246

New Fiction 207 167 136

New NonFiction 75 45 68

New Mystery 113 132 97

New Science Fiction 18 9 4

NonFiction 261 247 231

Northwest 23 12 18

Paperback General 15 6 21

Paperback Mystery 28 30 43

Paperback Romance 29 27 41

Paperback Westerns 4 17 10

Paperback Science Fiction 15 20 4

Science Fiction / Fantasy 61 41 30

Teen Fiction 134 125 95

Teen Graphic Novel 7 13 16

Teen NonFiction 3 5 1

Westerns 49 38 28

Ukuleles 8 1 3

TOTALS 4808 4384 3689

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.180



Library Advisory Board Minutes 
September 13, 2018 

Meeting Time 4:30pm 
 
Present at the meeting were Eva Jurney, Diane Gerson and Kevin Hill.  By consensus, 
Charlene Adams’s absence had been excused previously.  Eva Jurney’s term expired and she 
did not vote on any items. 
 
Rose reported that there was no month-end or year-end financial reports to review.  On the 
August happenings the checkouts, holds, renewals, issuance of new library cards and printing 
remained the same as the previous month. Overall attendance at the 20 summer reading 
programs was 1,464 children and 439 adults.  Children and teens read 2,095 hours over the 
summer.  Rose provided an explanation of how the hours for reading were determined.  The 
patron and circulation statistics were reviewed.  Board members noted that circulation for some 
of the items were down for the month of August. 
 
Upcoming programs at the library include Creature Teachers, New York Times bestselling 
author Andra Watkins, and Traveling Lantern will be performing Pinocchio.   
 
Danielle Herb, Library School intern was introduced.  She is attending online at Syracuse 
University for her Masters in Library Science and is interested in working at a rural public library.  
Danielle explained that she is doing two major projects for the library, Lynda.com and 
cataloging.   Eva Jurney asked what the job market was like; Danielle explained that it was very 
competitive.   
 
Rose explained the issues surrounding the implementation of Lynda.com.  Rose thanked the 
Board members for attending the meeting with Tim McQueary from the Oregon Community 
Foundation regarding the pop-up libraries.  Rose completed the Siletz grant to purchase the 
starter set of VOX books.   
 
All the carpets including the carpets in the back storage room will be cleaned.  The height of the 
exhaust fan housing unit required a special order and as such the fan has not been reinstalled.  
Rose explained that the ducts in the library need to be cleaned for the exhaust fans to work 
better.  
 
Rose reported that there the City will be having an all staff training.  The Children’s Services 
Division with OLA will be having the performer’s showcase in Salem at the end of September.   
 
LibData is working with Jamex for the public access printing.  This should wrap-up the funds for 
the Trust Management Grant.   
 
The library will be hosting the ABC House child abuse training, and the OHSU Eye Clinic for 
preschoolers in October.  
 
Diane Gerson asked if we will be having an evaluation of the Summer Reading programs and 
what went well and what didn’t.  Rose will provide the cost for design, printing and advertising 
for the summer reading programs.   
 
Add to next meeting’s discussions to excuse Don Hopkin’s absence.   

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.181



Statistics for July, 2018 Statistics for August, 2018 Statistics for September, 2018 
 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

OPAC Logins                      232 OPAC Logins                     255 OPAC Logins                     220 
SIP2 Logins                        370 SIP2 Logins                       333 SIP2 Logins                       362 
   
CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS 
Checkouts                          3898 Checkouts                         3469 Checkouts                         2898 
Renewals by Staff             761 Renewals by Staff            781 Renewals by Staff            688 
Renewals by OPAC           149 Renewals by OPAC          134 Renewals by OPAC           169 
   
HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED 

Holds by Staff                    96 Holds by Staff                    177 Holds by Staff                    98 
Holds by OPAC                   139 Holds by OPAC                  166 Holds by OPAC                  123 
   
ACTIVE PATRONS             2528 ACTIVE PATRONS            2484 ACTIVE PATRONS            2484 
   
NEW PATRONS NEW PATRONS                  NEW PATRONS                  
Resident                              41 Resident                             36 Resident                             35 
NonResident                       18 NonResident                      3 NonResident                      14 
   
   
ITEM COUNTS                     36208 ITEM COUNTS                   36126 ITEM COUNTS                   36182 
   
PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              
Logins this month                440 Logins this month               429 Logins this month               337 
Pages printed                        676 Pages printed                      782 Pages printed                       556 

 
Resource Sharing Savings  $2,818           Resource Sharing Savings  $3,267             Resource Sharing Savings  $2,886 
 
 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.182



 
                       09/30/2018     09/30/2017  % Change 

Call Volume:       2018-7373        2017-7615                -3.28%      

CAD Calls:               13886                13659     1.63%    

ONIBR Person Crimes       117          99   15.38%                     

ONIBR Person Crimes Cleared:      83          73   12.05%  

ONIBR Property Crimes:    485        481      0.82% 

ONIBR Property Crimes Cleared:   181        160     11.60% 

Trends: 

Currently the Department has two vacant Police Officer positions that we are in the process of filling. 

Based on the current state of the background investigations that are underway, we anticipate having 

two individuals hired and on board by the middle of November, if not sooner. Those two hires would 

bring the Department up to full staff. However, one of our Officers will more than likely be accepting a 

job offer from the Oregon State Police. Our hope is that the current applicant pool will be enough to fill 

that vacancy if/when it occurs.  

So far during 2018 there has been a noticeable increase in the Unlawful Entry into Motor Vehicle 

(UEMV) crimes (car prowls). Over that past handful of years, the City has averaged approximately 65 

UEMV’s. This year we are currently over 100. As Officer Cummings mentioned to Council previously, he 

has developed a plan to respond to these calls. The plan calls for public education, “hot spot” policing, 

and other investigative strategies. The effectiveness of the strategies will be reviewed regularly with the 

hope of determine what has and has not worked, with adjustments to me made form there.  

During the first part of November, we will be hosting a one-day Citizens Academy. A typical citizens 

academy last anywhere from 8 to 10 weeks, one night a week for approximately 2 hours. The last 

several attempts to host one within our community resulted in low turnout and interest. Our hope is 

that a one-day, 6-hour, commitment will be more enticing for community members to attend and learn 

about our Department. More information will be out shortly.  

 

 

 

 

 City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.183



 Person Crimes are defined as: 
 
                                      September    2018             September 2017 
 
Assault     1   2 

Child Neglect    0   3 

Criminal Homicide   0   0 

Custodial Interference   0   0 

Elder Abuse    0   0 

Harassment    3   3  

Menacing    0   0 

Other Sex Offense   0   0 

Rape     1   0 

Violation Restraining Order  1   0  
 
Property Crimes are defined as:  

                                      September    2018             September 2017 
 
Arson     0   1 

Burglary    3   5 

Criminal Mischief             12             12 

Forgery    1   5 

Fraud     4   2  

Motor Vehicle Theft   2   1 

Reckless Burning   0   0 

Robbery    0   0 

Theft               32             31 

  

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.184



SH Capitol Christmas Tree Committee 

October 2, 2018 / 10 am  

In Attendance 

Susan Coleman, MacKenzie Thomas, Jennifer Anderson,  Kellie Kem, Ken Collins, Lance Gatchell, Joyce 

Ohnesorge, Miriam Swanson, Michelle Carter, Patty Holk, Brian Womack, Dominic Valloni, Greg Springman, 

Kevin Makinson, Scott Gagner, Diane Gerson 

Approval of Minutes 

Committee Reports  

• Review of Task list/Time Line  

Items worth noting:  Dominic Valloni will head up moving stage from B & G Club to HS Gym ,  Patty 

Holk will step in as Merchandise Vendor Organizer, Jennifer Anderson will contact a nursery 

regarding potted greenery to hide high school garbage dumpster area, Scott Gagner will work with 

Brittany at Sunshine Industries in regards to event clean-up. RFP will need to be written up for them, 

which City of Sweet Home will look into. Clean up stage and table return to B & G Club for their fall 

auction.  It was suggested that maybe this happen on Friday night rather than on Saturday morning.  

 

• Finances 

We are in “good standing”.  Two outstanding possible donations from Comcast and County 

Commissioners.   Total Income to date $22, 617.46,  Actual Expenditures to date:  $14, 885.38, estimated 

amount was $36,430.00    

 

 

• Street Fair/Celebration Event  

Patty Holk stepped in as Vendor Coordinator.  Encourage people to get parade applications submitted, 

as well as vendor apps.  Discussion of lighting placement and avoiding too much noise disturbance for 

stage area.   We are in need of a Logging Exhibition coordinator (someone to direct people for set up 

etc).    

 

 

• Community Decorations 

Wreaths:  Lights have not yet been delivered to BiMart, but as soon as they are delivered, work will 

begin with PEO and Rotary club to help with refurbishment and lighting.  It was decided that 

decorations would be lit for the Capitol Christmas Tree Event, but not lit again til December.   

 

• Marketing/Press Release 

Posters were presented – Miriam Swanson will work with individuals on distribution within Linn 

County.  Press Releases & Social Media campaigns are being ramped up for promotion of the event.   

Miriam will email PDF’s & jpg’s of poster for additional distribution. 

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.185



• SH Ranger District  

There is one more ornament making event (Harvest Festival).      Tree Cutting scheduled for November 

2.  There will be limited viewing for this, but larger gathering will happen at River Bend County Park 

on that same day.    A media announcement will be made.  Ornament search has concluded, winner of 

the Washington DC trip will be chosen today, and announced on Friday, October 5.  Essay Contest for 

children, one will be chose to help with lighting of tree.  The actual date of tree lighting is still to be 

determined Dec. 4th, 5th or 6th is proposed.   

 

Announcements  Next Meeting Date 

Next meeting scheduled for October 16   10 am – Chamber of Commerce  

 

City Council Packet 10-23-18 pg.186


	(1) City Council Agenda 10-23-18
	(C)(a)(1) Council Minutes 10-09-18
	(F)(a)(1) RCA -NEOGOV -Government Jobs.com
	(F)(a)(2) NEOGOV Agreement
	(F)(b)(1) RCA -2019 Drug Free Transportation Consortium Agreement
	(F)(b)(2) Drug Free Consortium Agreement
	(F)(c)(1) RCA - Speedee Mart
	(F)(c)(2) OLCC Applicaton Speedee Mart 1
	(F)(c)(3) Liquor License Investigations
	(F)(d)(1) RCA - NCH Contract Bid 23Oct2018
	(F)(d)(2) NCH Pre-Bid Attendees
	(F)(d)(3) NCH Bid Opening List
	(F)(d)(4) NCH Project SubContractor List
	(F)(d)(5) NCH Project Timeline Memo - Revised
	(F)(d)(6) City Hall Construction Schedule
	(F)(e)(1) RCA ZC 18-03 (10-16-18)
	(F)(e)(2) Exhibit 1 - Staff Report for ZC 18-03SR to CC
	(F)(f)(1) RCA -Capitol Christmas Tree - Cloverdayle Agreement
	(F)(f)(2) Cloverdayle Booking Agreement
	(f)(g)(1) RCA 2018-10-23 leak detection contract request
	(F)(g)(2) Leak Detection Survey Proposal - City of Sweet Home 10-03-18
	(F)(g)(3) Record of staff attempts to get 3 quotes for municipal water leak detection
	(F)(h)(1) Peer Court RCA 2018
	(F)(h)(2) Letterhead
	(F)(h)(3) Peer Court IGA 2018
	(F)(h)(4) Peer Court Resolution 2018
	(F)(i)(1) Employee Handbook Updates for CIty Council 10-23-18
	(F)(i)(2) Policy Tracking Doc
	(H)(C)(i)(1) September 2018
	(H)(C)(i)(2) SH Dept Rept fy19
	(H)(C)(i)(3) September 2018 Checks
	(H)(C)(i)(4) Graphs for Presentation
	(H)(C)(ii)(1) City Council report September 2018
	(H)(C)(ii)(2) Circulation Statistics by Item type July, August, September 2018
	(H)(C)(ii)(3) Library Advisory Board Minutes September 13 2018
	(H)(C)(ii)(4) Patron Statistics for June, July, September 2018
	(h)(c)(iv)(1) 10-23-2018 COUNCIL STATISTICS
	(I)(1) CCTC 100218 Minutes



